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Corporate Profile HEBEE/

CARRY WEALTH HOLDINGS LIMITED manufactures apparel
products for internationally renowned brand names.

Headquartered in Hong Kong, Carry Wealth Holdings Limited has
been listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong since 2000.

The Group’s production facilities are spread from China and
Indonesia in Asia to Lesotho in sub-Saharan Africa.

The Chinese name of the Company means “enduring prosperity”.

The Group is committed to maximizing the return of its shareholders
for their ongoing support.
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Corporate Information 2A&E&EF
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Mr Rusli Hendrawan
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Mr Lee Sheng Kuang, James
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Mr Oey Tijie Ho
Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr Cheung Kwok Ming

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry, B.8.S., J.P.
Mr Lau Siu Ki, Kevin
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Ms Lee Yu Ki, Vanessa
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CITIC Ka Wah Bank
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Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Agent
Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited
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Information for Shareholders REEHR

Results Announcement Date
Interim results

20th August, 2008 (Wednesday)

Annual results

3rd April, 2009 (Friday)

Financial Calendar

Deadline for lodging share transfer documents for
entitlement to attend and vote at Annual General
Meeting

25th May, 2009 (Monday) at 4:00 p.m.

Closure of register of members
26th May, 2009 (Tuesday) to 29th May, 2009 (Friday)

Annual General Meeting

29th May, 2009 (Friday) at 10:00 a.m.

Dividends
Interim: 2.0 Hong Kong cents per ordinary share

paid on 19th September, 2008 (Friday)

Shareholder Enquiries

Any matters relating to your shareholding, such as transfer of
shares, change of address, loss of share certificates, should
be addressed to the Branch Share Registrar and Transfer
Agent in Hong Kong, contact details of which are set out as
follows:

Tricor Abacus Limited

26th Floor, Tesbury Centre,

28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2980 1700

Fax: (852) 2890 9350
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Carry Wealth
Holdings Limited
EEZRERAT

Investment holding
REER

Organizational Structure S£E%#E

Hong Kong & &

Indonesia El [

Lesotho &3t

BEZRBRAF

Carry Wealth Limited
EEBRAA

Garment trading, marketing and
provision of management services
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PT Caterindo
Garment Industri
Manufacture of knit tops
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Financial Highlights

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MBRE

AFEMBRHE
Results
E ¥
Year ended 31st December
BEt-RA=1t-HLEFE
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
—EBNE C—TTLF ZITERX —TTRE —ZTTME
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET FET TET TET
Revenues Wz 880,114 1,056,861 1,211,651 1,103,815 905,248
(Loss)/profit attributable AR Al #E %
to equity holders of BEAENL
the Company (B1]),/mFl (40,681) 48,950 68,116 65,720 (41,180)
Assets and liabilities
RERAR
As at 31st December
W+=A=t+—8
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
—EENE —IZTtF CZTTRF C—TTHE _—ZTTNWEF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET FAET TET TET
Total assets BEE 579,097 604,006 591,976 506,966 487,756
Total liabilities BefE (318,197 (270,048) (284,454) (250,207) (263,400)
Total equity R 260,900 333,958 307,522 256,759 224,356

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2008



Financial Highlights BIi§#HE
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Financial Highlights

MBRE

2008 2007 Changes
—EENF _—ZTT+HE ZLIRE
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FAT
Operating results REXE
Revenues g 880,114 1,056,861 -16.7%
Gross profit EH 172,899 239,571 -27.8%
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity ARAIEERBA
holders of the Company FEAE (BB1R) /i Al (40,681) 48,950 -183.1%
Financial position at year end REEBZBBARR
Properties, plant and equipment ME BERHZE 145,143 152,141 -4.6%
Bank balances and cash RITEEFELES® 63,508 109,952 -42.2%
Net current assets mBEEFE 69,863 119,224 -41.4%
Total assets BEE 579,097 604,006 -4.1%
Bank borrowings RITER 147,594 106,078 39.1%
Total liabilities mal 318,197 270,048 17.8%
Capital and reserves attributable to ARAEEFEBA
the Company’s equity holders fE1h 2 B R B 253,107 325,711 -22.3%
Per share information BEREHN
Basic (loss)/earnings per share SRER (BR)/BF
(Hong Kong cents) (L) (10.97) 13.40 -181.9%
Dividends per share BhikE
(Hong Kong cents) (AL 2.0 8.0 -75.0%
Capital and reserves attributable to BRAARAEEFBA
the Company’s equity holders Bz ER R FE
per share (Hong Kong cents) (7l 68.3 88.6 -22.9%
Ratio analysis te 2 2 47
Profitability BRI KF
Gross profit margin EH = 19.6% 22.7% -3.1%
Net profit margin MR = -4.6% 4.6% -9.2%
Return on the Company’s RARERFER A
equity holders & B -16.1% 15.0% -31.1%
Liquidity TE AR R
Current ratio mE & 1.2 1.5 -20.0%
Gearing ratio BERBELE 33.2% -1.2% +34.4%
Operating efficiency B W
Inventory turnover period (days) FERE (BE) 58 39 48.7%
Trade receivable turnover (days) BHREWFIERE (HE) 58 37 56.8%
Trade payable turnover (days) BoRNFERE (AZ) 38 33 15.2%

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2008




TURNOVER BY PRODUCT CATEGORIES

BRERSBZCERN

2008

HK$879 million
NEETFLEEET

100%

[ Knittops #14 F& [l Woven bottoms # & #i4%

TURNOVER BY PRODUCTION BASES

BEEMSBZCEXER

HK$879 million

NEEFNLEEET
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Financial Highlights BIiEE

2007

HK$1,055 million
+TERTHREEST

13.2%

86.8%

2007

HK$1,055 million

HEATHBEEERL
M 69.2%
16.5%
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10 Carry Wealth Holdings Limited

ERE®E

The global financial meltdown continued to worsen
towards the last quarter of 2008 affecting economies and
consumption sentiment around the world. Many industries
including the apparel industry have been suffering as a
result. Operating in the tough business environment, the
Group’s revenues for the year ended 31st December, 2008
were down by 16.7% to HK$880.1 million. Owing to the
plunge in turnover from garment manufacturing business and
loss from investment in the slumping global stock market
particularly in the last quarter, the Group recorded a loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company amounting
to HK$40.7 million and basic loss per share of 10.97 HK
cents for the year under review. The Board of Directors does
not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31st December, 2008. The total dividend for the year
was 2.0 HK cents per ordinary share which was paid on
19th September, 2008.

Chairman’s Statement

The Group embarked on a series of reengineering initiatives
and reforms to ensure it would make it through the
economic hard times. The Group restructured its local and
overseas facilities and implemented different cost-saving
measures during the year to keep operating costs at the
minimum. The Group also streamlined various production
bases with the aim of enhancing overall production
efficiency. To deal with the unprecedented challenge,
the Group rationalised the scale of its production and
deliberated to close down the factory in El Salvador near the
end of the year to conserve resources for sustaining long-
term competitiveness.

The apparel sector in Mainland China has continued to
grow but at a significantly slower rate from the high in 2007.
Apart from the poor global economy dampening demand for
China made textile and apparel, production costs had also
been escalating in the past year and as a result many small
scale apparel manufacturers in Guangdong Province closed
down during the year. However, the Chinese Government
has initiated a stimulus plan for the textile and apparel
industry including raising tax rebate for garment exports to
15% and allocating special funds to support the industry.
These measures plus the recent marked decline in oil price
and the stability of the Renminbi are expected to help ease
the difficulties manufacturers are facing. Despite the tough
trading environment in Mainland China, the Group was able
to secure orders from renowned domestic brands. It will
continue to focus on boosting production efficiency of the
Heshan factory to meet customer needs.

Annual Report 2008
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Governments around the world are using all different means
to fight the global economic downturn pinpointing both the
financial and employment markets. However, these efforts
are going to take time to produce results and players in the
apparel industry have to continue to battle tough challenges
in the market. To counter pressures from the economic
turmoil, the Group will continue to trim costs, produce
reliable and quality products, make prompt delivery, and
work in close collaboration with key customers.

To equip its workforce for facing the challenges ahead,
the Group will continue to offer training to employees at all
levels in different functions. Emphasis will also be placed
on system control, productivity enhancement and product
development so as to strengthen the core competence of
the Group. With the future market environment uncertain,
we see the need to be cautious and prudent in the Group’s
business development. We shall remain alert and keep
watch of changes in the market and promptly adjust our
business strategy accordingly. We will also seek to optimise
usage of resources in preparing ourselves for seizing first
opportunities when the market begins to rebound.

Lastly, | would like to thank all our staff for their dedicated
efforts in helping the Group fight the challenges encountered
during the year. The Group hopes to continue to count on
their relentless efforts to achieve long-term growth in the
years to come. | would also like to take this opportunity
to express my appreciation to my fellow directors for their
valuable contribution to the Group, and to our shareholders,
customers and business partners for their unfailing trust and
support during the year.

Rusli Hendrawan
Chairman

3rd April, 2009
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12 Carry Wealth Holdings Limited

Management Discussion and Analysis

RESULTS AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The global financial meltdown triggered by the US sub-
prime mortgage crisis has hit different industries including
the apparel manufacturing industry. For the year ended
31st December, 2008, the Group made a total revenues
amounting to HK$880.1 million (2007: HK$1,056.9 million)
and gross profit of HK$172.9 million (2007: HK$239.6
million). Loss attributable to equity holders was HK$40.7
million (2007: Profit of HK$49.0 million) and basic loss per
share was 10.97 HK cents for the year under review (2007:
Basic earnings per share was 13.40 HK cents). Excluding
other losses-net, profit attributable to the Company’s equity
holders was HK$17.5 million (2007: HK$51.6 million).

The financial turmoil intensified in the latter part of 2008
leading to a drop in consumer confidence and spending.
Turnover of the Group for the year ended 31st December,
2008 was HK$879.1 million, a decrease of 16.7% year-
on-year, with 7.9% attributable to the cessation of woven
bottom business in mid-2007.

Gross profit of the Group for the year under review was
HK$172.9 million (2007: HK$239.6 million). Gross profit
margin of the Group for the year ended 31st December,
2008 was down from 22.7% last year to 19.6%. The
narrower margin was the result of slack in demand from the
US, which is the Group’s major market, leading to receipt of
fewer sales orders by the Group and the decrease in sales
volume in turn translated into increased unit operating costs.

The Group invested in market linked instruments and equity
accumulators in respect of listed shares (mainly constituents
of H-shares Index and Hang Seng Index) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. All equity accumulators
matured during the year under review. Due to the slumping
global stock market particularly in the last quarter of 2008,
the Group recorded losses of approximately HK$45.2
million from investments in market linked instruments,
equity accumulators and the listed equity securities arising
therefrom. Such losses of approximately HK$45.2 million
primarily comprised: (i) approximately HK$25.4 million
losses arisen from the market linked instrument and equity
accumulators which were matured during the year and the
net disposal losses of listed equity securities; and (i) marked
to market losses of remaining listed equity securities and
market linked instruments held as at 31st December, 2008
amounting to approximately HK$19.8 million.

Annual Report 2008
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group has continuous need for Indonesia Rupiah for
its manufacturing operation in Indonesia. With a view to
minimising currency exposure in Indonesia Rupiah, the
Group has entered into a series of Rp target redemption
forward currency contracts. The Group recorded losses of
HK$18.7 million from the fair value losses of the outstanding
Rp target redemption forward currency contracts as
recorded under other losses-net for the year under review.
The total maximum amount deliverable under these
outstanding contracts is Indonesia Rupiah 112,031 million
which will satisfy part of the estimated needs of the Group in
20009.

The slight increase in selling expenses to turnover from 3.5%
to 3.9% was due to higher freight charges alongside surge in
oil price during the year. As for administration expenses, as
a percentage of turnover, it increased from 11.4% to 13.1%
mainly because of additional depreciation charges and
expenses in relation to new operations in Mainland China.

The Group indirectly holds a 40% effective interest in
ShanDong WeiQiao HengFu Textile Limited (“SWHT”), which
manufactures knitted fabrics. SWHT reported a turnover of
HK$135.0 million and a loss of HK$2.7 million for the year
under review. The Group’s share of net loss of SWHT was
HK$1.1 million (2007: Profit of HK$2.1 million). The setback
in performance of SWHT was the result of weakened
demand and surge in operating costs.

Indonesia

The knit factories in Indonesia continued to be the Group’s
major production base in the year under review. The
factories brought stable income during the year, which
accounted for 71.3% (2007: 69.2%) of the Group’s total
turnover.

El Salvador

During the year, the knit factory Charter, S.A. de C.V. in El
Salvador contributed 11.1% (2007: 16.5%) of the Group’s
total turnover. To rationalise its production facilities, the
Group closed the factory at the end of December 2008.
The cessation incurred one-off severance payments
and impairment loss for plant and machinery. However,
the Group believes the move will help to boost its
competitiveness in the long run.
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14 Carry Wealth Holdings Limited

Management Discussion and Analysis

Lesotho

The output of the knit factory Shinning Century Limited in
Lesotho accounted for 7.0% (2007: 7.7%) of the Group’s
total turnover for the review year.

Mainland China

The factory in Heshan, Mainland China commenced trial
production in 2007 and was responsible for 5.7% of the
Group’s turnover for the year ended 31st December, 2008
(2007: 1.0%). The performance of the factory was affected
by unfavourable conditions including shortage of skilled
labour, escalating operating costs and appreciation of the
Renminbi. The factory has yet to reach optimum production
scale.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group continued to maintain a solid liquidity position.
As at 31st December, 2008, the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents totalled HK$63.5 million (31st December,
2007: HK$110.0 million). Working capital represented by
net current assets amounted to HK$69.9 million (31st
December, 2007: HK$119.2 million). The Group’s current
ratio was 1.2 (31st December, 2007: 1.5).

Bank borrowings, in the form of trust receipt loans,
amounted to HK$97.9 million (31st December, 2007:
HK$59.2 million) and term loan, amounted to HK$49.7
million (31st December, 2007: HK$46.9 million). The bank
loans were denominated in either HK dollars or US dollars.
As at 31st December, 2008, the gearing ratio of the Group,
which is calculated as net debt (total borrowings less cash
and cash equivalents) divided by capital and reserves
attributable to the Company’s equity holders, was 33.2%
(31st December, 2007: -1.2%).

Annual Report 2008
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The debt maturity profile of the Group as at 31st December,
2008 was as follows:

REEBR_ZTT)N\F+_-_A=1+—HZ
BRI ESFAT :

At At

31st December, 31st December,

2008 2007

R-ZFZENE RZETLF

+t=ZA=+—-HB +ZHA=+—H

HK$’000 HK$’000

THERT FET

Repayable within one year BAR—FANEE 125,406 72,773
Repayable after 1 year, AR —F1&E

but within 2 years AMFEANEE 16,121 12,916
Repayable after 2 years, AR F 18 1E

but within 5 years BEFANEER 6,067 20,389

Total Gy 147,594 106,078

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

For the year under review, the Group incurred a total
capital expenditure of HK$15.3 million (2007: HK$70.3
million), which was funded using its own financial resources
and bank borrowings. HK$8.8 million was invested in the
production facilities in Heshan City, Guangdong Province
and the balance of HK$6.5 million was spent on new and
replacement machineries for other factories.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s sales are principally denominated in US dollars.
It has factories and offices in Hong Kong, Indonesia, El
Salvador, Lesotho and Mainland China. Operating expenses
of the Group are primarily denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, Indonesia Rupiah, Salvadoran Colones, South
African Rand, Renminbi and some in US dollars.

As the Hong Kong dollar and Salvadoran Colone are pegged
to the US dollar, the Group does not expect to be exposed
to any currency risks arising from these two currencies in the
near term. The Group will closely monitor fluctuation of other
currencies and the position of the Rp target redemption
forward currency contracts and, if necessary, terminate the
contracts and/or take delivery of the Indonesia Rupiah.
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16 Carry Wealth Holdings Limited

Management Discussion and Analysis

CREDIT POLICY

Consistent with prevailing industry practice, during the year
under review, about 94.6% (2007: 74.6%) of the Group’s
business was transacted on open account basis granted
to several long-standing customers and the rest on letters
of credit as required. The credit ratings of customers
are constantly reviewed and their respective credit limits
adjusted, if necessary.

CHARGES ON FIXED ASSETS

As at 31st December, 2008, the Group had no charge
on fixed assets. As at 31st December, 2007, the Group’s
investment properties in Hong Kong with a carrying value
of HK$28.3 million had been pledged to a bank to secure
trade facilities of up to HK$140.2 million. The investment
properties were disposed in the year under review.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st December, 2008, the Group had no contingent
liabilities.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

The Group believes the success of its business hinges on
employee commitment, thus it spares no effort in providing
a harmonious working environment to employees to
encourage dedication to work. The Group offers employees
with rewarding careers and provides them with a variety
of training programmes. It rewards employees according
to remuneration benchmarks in the industry as well as
prevailing market conditions and their experience and
performance. To attract and retain high calibre employees,
the Group also grants discretionary bonuses and share
options to staff. A share option scheme has been
established by the Group for eligible participants (including
employees). Subsequent to the expiry of exercisable period
in November 2008 for share options granted on 25th
October, 2005, no new share option was granted during the
year under review.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31st December, 2008, the Group had a total of 5,682
(31st December, 2007: 6,450) full-time employees in the
following regions:

Indonesia g
Lesotho KR
El Salvador &R R %

China (Mainland and Hong Kong)

Total 4=t

OUTLOOK

To combat the adverse impacts of the global financial
tsunami rippling across the world, especially the US and
Europe, various governments have announced massive
economic stimulus packages. In the US, for example,
President Barack Obama has recently signed into law plans
involving about US$787 billion to rescue critical industries
and brace consumer confidence. He also unveiled a US$3.6
trillion budget for 2010 aimed at boosting the US economy.
With the effects of such stimulus packages yet to be seen,
the Group sees a grim general economic outlook for the year
2009.

Mainland China is not immune to the global financial
crisis, but it appears to be feeling the impacts in a lesser
magnitude. Export from the country has declined and a
considerable number of manufacturing enterprises in the
Pearl River Delta had closed down and many workers
became jobless. To counter the economic slowdown, the
Chinese Government announced a RMB4 trillion economic
stimulus package including relaxation of monetary policy and
measures to boost domestic demand. Other complementary
initiatives included policies to stabilise the RMB, increase
export tax rebate, loosen bank credits and postpone the
increase of minimum wage standard, all to help companies
survive in the difficult period.

With the US economy in the slump, 2009 will be another
challenging year for the Group. The Group expects the
garment industry to consolidate at increasing speed in the
coming year with more small apparel manufacturers ousted
from it. This phenomenon is going to benefit large garment
enterprises in terms of competitiveness and economic of
scale in the long run. With proven capability in supplying
quality products at reasonable prices and timely delivery,
the Group believes it stands well to benefit from the industry
consolidation and in overcoming the challenges ahead.
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18 Carry Wealth Holdings Limited

Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group is implementing a new ERP system with diverse
functions and features associated with intelligent workflow-
control and alert mechanism, which will allow it to strengthen
monitoring and management of the entire supply chain.

The Group will continue to conduct regular operational
reviews of each of its production facilities so as to
enhance their efficiency and cost control, and minimise
wastage. It will also seek to re-engineer and reform internal
procedures and policies to make sure its operations are apt
in responding to changing market conditions. The Group
expects the economic fundamentals of Mainland China to
remain sound and believes the domestic market will continue
to boast potential in the long run. The Group will continue to
focus on optimising the production efficiency of its factory in
Heshan. Heeding the good customer response to the value-
added services such as product design and development
service it provides, the Group will continue to inject more
resources into enriching its value-added services to key
customers.

Overshadowed by the financial tsunami, equity markets
around the world are expected to remain volatile in the
foreseeable future. As at the date of this Annual Report, the
Group had disposed of all its equity securities held at year
end and recorded a further loss of HK$2.8 million.

The Group sees severe challenges ahead and holds a
conservative view on the Group’s performance. It will be
vigilant in running its business and will closely monitor
market situations and adjust its strategy accordingly. With a
solid foundation in the apparel manufacturing industry, the
Group is confident of making it through the challenging time
in good shape.
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Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS

Mr RUSLI Hendrawan
Chairman

Mr RUSLI Hendrawan, aged 65, is a founder and the
Chairman of the Group. Mr Rusli focuses on overall
corporate development and strategic direction of the Group
and provides leadership for the board of directors and
oversees its efficient functioning. Mr Rusli has over thirty
years of experience in the manufacture of apparel products.

Mr LEE Sheng Kuang, James
Managing Director

Mr LEE Sheng Kuang, James, aged 62, is a founder and
the Managing Director of the Group. He is responsible for
all day-to-day corporate management matters. Mr Lee is
also responsible for planning and developing the Group’s
strategy. Mr Lee has over thirty years of experience in the
manufacture and distribution of apparel products.

Mr OEY Tjie Ho
Executive Director

Mr OEY Tijie Ho, aged 57, is a founder of the Group. He is in
charge of the human resources and administration functions
of the Group. Mr Oey has extensive experience in the
garment industry.

Mr TANG Chak Lam, Charlie
Executive Director

Mr TANG Chak Lam, Charlie, aged 47, is responsible for the
overall financial operation of the Group. He is a member of
the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr Tang is
a certified public accountant in Hong Kong and is a fellow
member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom (*“ACCA”). Prior to joining
the Group in November 1999, Mr Tang was the head of
finance and accounting of a conglomerate with subsidiaries
listed on the NASDAQ in the United States and the
Australian Stock Exchange Limited and the China division
of another conglomerate listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. Mr Tang also has extensive audit
experience with one of the big four international accounting
firms.
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20 Carry Wealth Holdings Limited

Directors and Senior Management

Mr CHEUNG Kwok Ming
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr CHEUNG Kwok Ming, aged 47, was appointed an
independent non-executive director in April 2005 and is
the member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. He is a qualified solicitor in
Hong Kong. Mr Cheung is currently a partner of a Hong
Kong law firm, ONC Lawyers and his areas of practice
include corporate finance, merger and acquisition, banking
and securities. He holds a Bachelor of Laws degree from the
University of Hong Kong.

Mr KWOK Lam Kwong, Larry, B.B.S., J.P.
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr KWOK Lam Kwong, Larry, B.B.S., J.P, aged 53, was
appointed an independent non-executive director in July
2002 and is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and a member of the Audit Committee of the Company. He
is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong, and is currently the
Managing Partner, China of Mallesons Stephen Jaques. Mr
Kwok is also qualified to practise as a solicitor in Australia,
England and Wales and Singapore. He is also qualified
as a Chartered Accountant in England and Wales and a
CPA in Hong Kong and Australia. Mr Kwok graduated
from the University of Sydney, Australia with Bachelor’s
Degrees in Economics and Laws respectively as well as a
Master’'s Degree in Laws. He is currently the Chairman of
the Traffic Accident Victims Assistance Advisory Committee
and a member of the Hospital Governing Committee of
Kwai Chung Hospital/Princess Margaret Hospital and the
Insurance Claims Complaints Panel. Mr Kwok is also a
member of the Political Consultative Committee of Guangxi
in the People’s Republic of China.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr LAU Siu Ki, Kevin
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr LAU Siu Ki, Kevin, aged 50, was appointed an
independent non-executive director in February 2002 and is
the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is a fellow
member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and ACCA. He has over twenty-five years
of experience in corporate finance, financial advisory and
management, accounting and auditing and had worked for
an international accounting firm for over fifteen years. Mr Lau
is currently a financial advisory consultant running his own
management consultancy firm, Hin Yan Consultants Limited
and also a consultant to the corporate finance division of
PCP CPA Limited. Mr Lau is a Council Member of ACCA. He
has also served as a member of the Executive Committee
of the Hong Kong branch of ACCA since 1995 and was
elected as the Chairman of the Hong Kong branch of ACCA
for 2000/2001. He is currently the company secretary of two
Hong Kong listed companies and also an independent non-
executive director of several other listed companies in Hong
Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr WOO Keung Fu, Danny
Sales Director

Mr WOO Keung Fu, Danny, aged 46, joined the Group in
August 2005 and is the Sales Director of the Group. He is
responsible for implementation of the sales strategies to
achieve the annual sales target and also in charge of new
product developments and formulating pricing strategies.
Mr Woo holds a Bachelor’s Degree of Science (Engineering)
from The University of Hong Kong. He has over twenty years
of experience in apparel manufacturing.
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22 Carry Wealth Holdings Limited

Directors and Senior Management

Ms FAN Sau Yin, Gloria
Financial Controller

Ms FAN Sau Yin, Gloria, aged 43, joined the Group in May
1996 and is the Financial Controller of the Group. She
is a fellow member of ACCA and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She holds a
Master Degree of Professional Accounting from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. Prior to joining the Group,
Ms Fan also had audit experience with one of the big four
international accounting firms and internal audit experience
in a listed company in Hong Kong.

Mr KAM Shui Hao, Tony
General Manager — PRC Operations

Mr KAM Shui Hao, Tony, aged 51, joined the Group in
May 1989 and is the General Manager of Heshan Carry
Wealth Garment Limited, a PRC wholly foreign owned
enterprise which is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company. He is responsible for all day-to-day business
operation matters for Heshan factory. Mr Kam has over
twenty-seven years of experience in the manufacture and
merchandising of apparel products.
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Corporate Governance Report

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
committed to maintaining and ensuring high standards of
corporate governance as good corporate governance can
safeguard the interests of all shareholders and enhance
corporate value. The Company continuously reviews and
improves the corporate governance practices and standards
of the Group from time to time to ensure that business
activities and decision making processes are regulated in a
proper manner and enhance transparency of its business for
scrutiny by shareholders and investors.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions set
out in the Code (the “CG Code”) on Corporate Governance
Practices contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended
31st December, 2008.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

The Board is led by the Chairman and currently comprises
four executive directors (one of whom is the Chairman) and
three independent non-executive directors. The directors
of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr Rusli Hendrawan (Chairman)

Mr Lee Sheng Kuang, James (Managing Director)
Mr Oey Tjie Ho

Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr Cheung Kwok Ming
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry, B.8.S., J.P.
Mr Lau Siu Ki, Kevin

The biographical details of the directors are set out on pages
19 to 21 of this Annual Report. The Board possesses a
balance of skill and experience which are appropriate for
the requirements of the business of the Group. A balanced
composition of executive and non-executive directors also
generates a strong independent element on the Board,
which can exercise independent judgement effectively
and make decision objectively for the best interests of the
Company.
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24 Carry Wealth Holdings Limited

Corporate Governance Report ¥ERHE

The Company does not at present have any officer with
the title of “chief executive officer” (‘CEOQ”) but instead the
duties of a CEO are performed by the Managing Director. In
order to have a clear division between the management of
the Board and the day-to-day management of the business
operation of the Company, the role of the Chairman is
separate from that of the Managing Director. The Chairman
focuses on overall corporate development and strategic
direction of the Group and provides leadership for the Board
and oversees the efficient functioning of the Board. The
Managing Director is responsible for all day-to-day corporate
management matters as well as planning and developing
the Group’s strategy. Such division of responsibilities helps
to reinforce their independence and to ensure a balance
of power and authority. There is no relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationship) among members of the Board and in particular,
between the Chairman and the Managing Director.

All the independent non-executive directors of the Company
have appropriate professional qualifications and their
professional opinions raised in the Board meetings facilitate
the maintenance of good corporate governance practices.
All the independent non-executive directors are free from
any business or other relationship with the Company.
The Company has received from each independent non-
executive director an annual confirmation of independence.
The Board considers that each independent non-executive
director is independent in character and judgement and that
they all meet the specific independence criteria as required
under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Appointments and Re-election of Directors

The Board is empowered under the Company’s Bye-laws
to appoint any person as a director either to fill a casual
vacancy on or as an additional member of the Board. The
selection criteria are mainly based on the professional
qualification and experience of the candidate. In December
2008, a Remuneration Committee meeting was held to
approve the renewal of service agreement with each of the
four executive directors, Mr Rusli Hendrawan, Mr Lee Sheng
Kuang, James, Mr Oey Tjie Ho and Mr Tang Chak Lam,
Charlie for a term of three years from 1st January, 2009 to
31st December, 2011. All the independent non-executive
directors are engaged on service contracts for a term of two
years. During the year, a Board meeting was held to approve
the renewal of service agreement with two independent non-
executive directors, Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry, B.8.S., J.P
and Mr Lau Siu Ki, Kevin respectively for a term of two years
from 1st January, 2009 to 31st December, 2010.

Annual Report 2008

AR ) 3R B I B AR (AT AT S [ 1T IR AR
2 (TTBEE])  AMITRAEZ B
EHEFHRKERET RIEEREFER
BEARNAHEERBEEREESMHE
D EIRAREFELEZAEE TR -
ITFRFEIAKEZERBOEZEREER
R WREEEQNERESS ZEF
MeL - EFRKENEEVRELEE
R ANGHEI R BRAEE 2 KA -
HEHEEDBEARIERMRE 2B
KEREBRNLRELRGYH B8
EREZE (LEREIRFENEFHEKE
ZE)BEENER(BRPB X5
R HMBEBAHEARER)

ARRERBYIFATESHAEBEE
ZEEER MEEREFESH LEY
LEXREANMEPUBRIFZEEER
FHR o EREUIFNTESHELEAAF
BEFAEHBLEMOE @R A RA
ERBEBIFNTEST CFERH LR
R-EFERR BHEUFNTEEEFR
HBVACRAE TRB/WEFHDFTA L
MR RSB AR E 2 EBL MR
o

EERERES

BEEQRARTRZARMAIRERTE
MALTAES WEFATEHRIAKNAESS
FIKE BEEREFBURRAZEESE
BEEmARE - R_TTNF+ -
FMEZEeRTeR HWESENAE
772 ERusli Hendrawanft 4 « B4k
ECEEMEEMRBERLES B ZRE
BY BN A=FH _ZTThF—
A—BEz-_FT——F+_-_A=+—H
o 2BBYIERTESHRAPMF 2
RIGENZE-FRN EFTSRTLH
D B EE MW BB IEHTTE BB
BhREmemes srmtr RBBETE
ZRBEX EEAOEREMEARA_Z
ThEFE—AF—HEE-_T—ZFTF+_H
=+—Hlik-



Corporate Governance Report

A newly appointed director must retire and be re-elected
at the first general meeting after his appointment. At each
annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of the
directors for the time being (or, if their number is not three
or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. Every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. As such, no director has a term of appointment longer
than three years. A retiring director shall be eligible for re-
election.

Board and Management

To enable all directors to make informed decisions in
the Board meetings and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities, appropriate, complete and reliable
information prepared by the management are provided
in a timely manner. All directors are kept informed on a
timely basis of major changes that may affect the Group’s
business, including relevant rules and regulations. To
reinforce independence, the Board and each director
can have separate and independent access to the
management of the Company if additional information is
required. To further assist the directors to discharge their
duties to the Company, the Board has also established a
written procedure to enable directors to seek independent
professional advice at the Company’s expenses. No request
was made by any director for such independent professional
advice in 2008.

In order to have a clear principle in relation to the matters
specifically reserved to the Board for decisions, functions
between the Board and the management are formalized.
The Board has established a written guideline determining
which issues require a decision of the Board and those
delegated to the management. The guideline is reviewed
by the Board on a regular basis and has been posted on
the intranet of the Company. Matters reserved to the Board
for decision include the making of significant financial and
legal commitments, merger and acquisition, material asset
acquisition or disposal, the change of share capital, the
approval of financial reporting, budgeting, management
succession and representation to shareholders. The
management is responsible for the day-to-day running of
the Group. The management is required to submit reports
on the operations to the Board on a regular basis and make
recommendations to the Board on the development of
major projects or business proposals and their respective
implementation. The Board is of the view that such division
of responsibilities can enhance the corporate governance of
the Company.
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The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against its directors and officers and
the insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

Board Meeting

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year
to approve annual and interim results, review the business
operation and the internal control system of the Group
and the meeting schedule will be fixed at the beginning of
each year to facilitate fullest possible attendance. Between
regular meetings, other Board meetings are held to approve
major issues (if any). At least 14 days’ notice of each
regular meeting is given to all directors whilst reasonable
notices are given for all other Board meetings. Agendas
and accompanying Board papers are sent not less than
3 days before the date of Board meetings to ensure that
the directors are given sufficient review time. Draft minutes
of Board meetings and Board committee meetings are
circulated to directors for their review and comment while
final version of the said minutes, duly signed, are sent to
all members for their records. All said minutes are kept by
the Company Secretary of the Company and are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by
any director.

During the year ended 31st December, 2008, five Board
meetings were held and the individual attendance of
directors are set out as follows:
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Attended
Directors BE=E R
Mr Rusli Hendrawan (Chairman) Rusli Hendrawant & ( % /&) 4
Mr Lee Sheng Kuang, James (Managing Director) TR E (EFLKLEE) 5
Mr Oey Tjie Ho BEEMELE 5
Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie BOZFR £ 5
Mr Cheung Kwok Ming ok B BA 5t 4 5
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry, B.8.S., J.P SSMBE S LA EE K FHT 5
Mr Lau Siu Ki, Kevin RRELEAE 5
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code”). Having made specific enquiry of all directors of
the Company, all directors have confirmed that they had
complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code and the Company’s code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions during the year.

Details of the directors’ interests in the shares of the
Company as at 31st December, 2008 are set out on page
42 of this Annual Report.

To enhance the corporate governance of the Group as a
whole, the Board has established a written guideline on no
less exacting terms than the Model Code for employees of
the Company or director or employee of the Company’s
subsidiaries or holding company who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished price sensitive information in
relation to the Group or securities of the Company. No
incident of non-compliance was noted by the Company in
2008.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Board set up the Audit Committee in 2000 with
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with
its authority and duties. To ensure on-going compliance
with the code provisions set out in the newly amended CG
Code which became effective from 1st January, 2009, the
terms of reference of the Audit Committee have been revised
in late December 2008 to take into account the Board’s
responsibility for reviewing the adequacy of staffing of the
financial reporting functions and the oversight role of the
Audit Committee. The revised terms of reference have been
posted on the Company’s website. The Audit Committee is
to review the Group’s financial reporting, internal controls
and corporate governance issues and make relevant
recommendations to the Board.
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The members of the Audit Committee include:
Mr Lau Siu Ki, Kevin (Committee Chairman)

Mr Cheung Kwok Ming
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry, B.B.S., J.P

All Audit Committee members are independent non-
executive directors. During the year ended 31st December,
2008, four Audit Committee meetings were held and the
individual attendance of members are set out as follows:

BZLZEGKERE:
RRERE (ZESLE)

SR B AR A&

SO B S s 2 S AP

EHERZREEREYRBIUIFNTE
Z-RBEE-_TTN\Ft+-_A=1+—HBLt
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FIRKBZHEBERESNT

Attended
Members o= HERE
Mr Lau Siu Ki, Kevin RIBE S E 4
Mr Cheung Kwok Ming oR B BR %5 A 4
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry, B.8.S., J.P MBS L AEE K FHT 4

In discharging its responsibilities, the Audit Committee had
mainly performed the following works during the year of
2008:

(i)  reviewed the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with the applicable standards;

(i) reviewed the draft interim and annual financial
statements and the related draft results announcements;

(i) reviewed the change in accounting standards and
assessment of potential impacts on the Group’s
financial statements;

(iv) reviewed the continuing connected transactions and
comment on the fairness and reasonableness of the
transactions;

(v) reviewed the Group’s internal control system and
discussed the relevant issues including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions; and

(vii made recommendation on the appointment or

reappointment of the external auditors and approved
their terms of engagement.
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Remuneration Committee

The Board set up the Remuneration Committee in 2005
with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly
with its authority and duties. The terms of reference have
been posted on the Company’s website. The Remuneration
Committee’s role is to make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration policy and structure for directors
and senior management and to ensure that they are fairly
rewarded for their individual contribution to the Group’s
overall performance, having regard to the interests of
shareholders. The principal duties of the Remuneration
Committee include determining the specific remuneration
packages of all executive directors and senior management
as well as reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives
resolved by the Board from time to time.

The members of the Remuneration Committee include:
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry, B.8.S., J.P
(Committee Chairman)
Mr Cheung Kwok Ming
Mr Lau Siu Ki, Kevin
Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie

Except for Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie who is an executive
director, all Remuneration Committee members are
independent non-executive directors. During the year
ended 31st December, 2008, two Remuneration Committee
meetings were held and the individual attendance of
members are set out as follows:
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The Remuneration Committee is accountable to the Board
and the following is a summary of its work during the year of
2008:

(@) reviewed and approved the performance-based
remuneration of executive directors;

(b) reviewed and approved the supplemental agreements
to the service agreements of an executive director;

(c) reviewed and approved the remuneration packages of
senior management;

(d) reviewed and approved the revised remuneration policy
for directors and senior management; and

(e) reviewed and approved the renewal of service
agreements with four executive directors.

The main principles of remuneration policy of the Company
are:

(i)  to retain and motivate executive directors and senior
management by linking their compensation with
performance as measured against corporate objectives;

(i) to align executive directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration with shareholders’ interests; and

(i) to ensure that no director or senior management or
any of his associate is involved in deciding his own
remuneration.

When fixing the remuneration packages of executive
directors, considerations have been given to the
qualifications and experience of the executive directors,
their duties and responsibilities with and contributions to
the Group, the level of directors’ remuneration of other
comparable listed companies in Hong Kong, the Group’s
performance and the prevailing market condition. The
principal elements of the remuneration packages of
executive directors of the Company include salary, director’s
fee, double pay, discretionary bonus and share options.
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For achieving high standards of corporate governance, the
remuneration, comprising directors’ fee, of independent non-
executive directors is put forward for shareholders’ approval
at the annual general meeting of the Company. Details
of the remuneration of each director, on a named basis,
are disclosed in Note 15 to the financial statements on
pages 126 and 127 of this Annual Report. Reimbursement
is allowed for out-of pocket expenses incurred (including
traveling and hotel expenses) in connection with the
performance of directors’ duties.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARATION AND
REPORTING OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company acknowledge their
responsibility for preparing the financial statements of
the Group in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The directors will select
suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently,
make judgements and estimates that are prudent, fair
and reasonable and prepare the financial statements
on a going concern basis. The Board’s responsibility to
present a balanced, clear and understandable assessment
extends to annual and interim reports, other price-sensitive
announcements and other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules as well as the information required to
be disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

The statement of the auditor of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities for the financial statements of the
Group is set out on pages 46 and 47 of this Annual Report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the ultimate responsibility to maintain a
sound and effective internal control system for the Group
to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the Group’s
assets and to ensure strict compliance with relevant laws,
rules and regulations. The Audit Committee is responsible for
reviewing the effectiveness of the internal control system and
reporting to the Board.

The Group adopts the principles outlined in /Internal Control
and Risk Management — A Basic Framework issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants as
yardstick in establishing its control environment. The scope
of internal control relates to areas including effectiveness
and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
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During the year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness
of the internal control system of the Group through the
Audit Committee. The review covers all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions of the Group. No material internal
control aspects of any significant problems were noted. Both
of the Audit Committee and the Board were satisfied that
the internal control system of the Group has been functioned
effectively during the review year.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, Messrs PricewaterhouseCoopers, Auditor
of the Company (which for the purpose includes any entity
under common control, ownership or management with the
Auditor or any entity that a reasonable and informed third
party having knowledge of all relevant information would
reasonably conclude as part of the audit firm nationally or
internationally) provided the following audit and non-audit
services to the Group:
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HK$’'000

FET

Audit services E T IR 2,026
Non-audit services IEEET RS

Taxation services T 5 AR 1% 360

2,386

The Audit Committee received written confirmation from
the external auditor on its independence and objectivity as
required under the Professional Ethics Statement 1.203A
“Independence for Assurance Engagements” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, shareholders’
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the voting right at general meetings of the Company, can by
written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary
of the Company to convene a special general meeting for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
In compliance with the new requirements of the revised
Listing Rules which took effect on 1st January, 2009, any
subsequent annual general meeting, and general meeting at
which the passing of a special resolution is to be considered
shall be called by at least 20 clear business days’ notice,
whilst others may be called by at least 10 clear business
days’ notice.
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To further enhance the minority shareholders’ right, all
resolutions at any general meeting are decided on poll and
such practice has been adopted since 2005. The chairman
of any general meetings ensures that the shareholders are
informed of the detailed procedures for conducting a poll by
way of making the explanation at the commencement of the
general meetings. The chairman of general meetings also
ensures compliance with the requirements about voting by
poll contained in the Listing Rules and the Bye-laws of the
Company.

In order to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders,
shareholders are encouraged to attend annual general
meeting of the Company at which the Chairman of the Board
and the chairmen of the Board committees are available to
answer questions related to the Group’s business.

Shareholders’ comments and suggestions together with any
proposals put forward to general meetings at a reasonable
time are welcome and such comments and proposals
can be sent in writing to the Company Secretary at the
Company’s address in Hong Kong or by e-mail to the
Company’s website. The Board endeavors to answer all
invaluable questions of the shareholders.

As a channel of further promoting effective communication
as well as fulfilling the requirements of the Listing Rules, the
corporate website, www.carrywealth.com, is maintained by
the Company to disseminate the relevant financial and non-
financial information on a timely basis and the published
information will be maintained at the above website for at
least five years.

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors as at the
date of this Annual Report, the public float of the shares of
the Company is sufficient.
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Report of the Directors

The directors present their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31st December,
2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 35 to the
financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
business and geographical segments is set out in Note 5 to
the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 48.

The directors declared an interim dividend of 2.0 Hong
Kong cents per ordinary share, totalling approximately
HK$7,437,000 for the six months ended 30th June, 2008
(2007: HK$11,009,000).

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31st December, 2008 (2007:
HK$18,398,000).

RESERVES

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus of the Company shall not be
distributed to the shareholders if there are reasonable
grounds for believing that:

()  the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable
to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(i)  the realisable value of the Company’s assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and
its issued share capital and share premium account.

As at 31st December, 2008, the Company had
distributable reserves amounting to HK$172,708,000
(2007: HK$169,868,000), including contributed surplus
of HK$147,694,000 (2007: HK$147,694,000) which is
distributable subject to conditions as set out above.
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Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in Note 32 to the financial
statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$242,460 (2007: HK$110,620).

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in properties, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in Note 17 to the
financial statements.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties are situated at
Workshops Nos.1 and 2, 2nd Floor, Charm Centre, No.700
Castle Peak Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong under the lease
period from 1st July, 1973 to 30th June, 2047, being leased
to independent third parties for office usage.

The Group has disposed the above investment properties
with Global Castle International Limited, an independent
third party, for a consideration of HK$35,600,000. The
disposal was completed on 14th August, 2008. For details
of the disposal, please refer to the circular of the Company
dated 18th March, 2008.

Other details of the Group’s investment properties are set
out in Note 18 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the
Company are set out in Note 31 to the financial statements.
SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set
out in Note 35 to the financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group are set out in
Note 28 to the financial statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
6.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the
year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the
year.

SHARE OPTIONS

Under the terms of the share option scheme of the Company
adopted on 8th May, 2002 (the “Scheme”), the Company
granted options to certain qualifying participants on 25th
October, 2005 to subscribe for a total of 17,160,000 shares
of HK$0.10 each in the Company at HK$0.536 per share at
a consideration of HK$1.00 per qualifying participant.

The principal terms of the Scheme are as follows:

(i) Purpose

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives
to qualifying participants to contribute to the Group
and/or to enable the Group to recruit and/or to retain
high-calibre employees and attract resources that are
valuable to the Group.

(i) Qualifying participants

Any person being an employee, director (including
executive or non-executive director), consultant,
representative, professional adviser, customer, business
partner, joint venture partner, strategic partner, landlord
or tenant of, or any supplier or provider of goods
or services, to the Group, and any trustee(s) of a
discretionary trust of which one or more beneficiaries
belong to any of the abovementioned category(ies) of
persons.

(iii) Maximum number of shares

The total number of shares available for issue under the
Scheme is 24,160,000 which is 6.50% of the issued
share capital as at the date of this Annual Report.
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Maximum entitlement of each qualifying
participant

No qualifying participant shall be granted an option
which, if exercised in full, would result in such person’s
maximum entitlement exceeding 1% of the aggregate
number of shares for the time being issued and issuable
under the Scheme.

Option period

In respect of any particular option, such period
commencing on the date of grant or such later date as
the directors may decide and expiring on such date as
the directors may determine, such period not to exceed
10 years from the date of grant.

Acceptance of offer

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of 30 days from the date on
which the option is offered. An offer of the grant of the
option shall be deemed to have been accepted when
the duplicate offer document constituting acceptance
of the option duly signed by the grantee together with
a remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by
way of consideration of the grant thereof is received by
the Company.

Subscription price

The subscription price in respect of any particular
option shall be such price as the directors may
determine at the date of grant of the relevant option but
shall not be less than whichever is the greater of:

(@) The closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheet of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the
date of grant;

The average closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets
in the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

The nominal value of the Company’s shares.
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(viii) The remaining life of the Scheme

The directors shall be entitled at any time within 10
years commencing on 8th May, 2002 to offer the grant
of an option to any qualifying participants.

Under the Scheme, the share options were exercisable from
1st November, 2005 to 31st October, 2008. All unexercised
share options lapsed on 1st November, 2008 and the details
of these share options are as follows:

Number of options

(viii) ZEtBIRER B/

EEERR_EZE_FHEANHRE
T ERBERREMEERLESE
BEREREERE-

BEZAEBREIRN_ZZTRF+—
A—RZ_ZZNF+THA=+—H1TE-
FIBERMRITEZEREECR_ZZNF
T—A—BERM MLEEREFBET
T

BREHA
Held at Granted Exercised Lapsed Held at 31st
1st January, during during during December, Exercise
2008 the year the year the year 2008 price  Grant date Exercise from Exercise until
HK$
R®
i “BEN\E
—2EN\E +=A
-A-B =t+-H
5B FREL FRTHE FREN 58 RE BEAH e ez
B
Director Mr Rusli Hendrawan 3,600,000 - (3,600,000) - - 0.536  25th October, 2005  1st November, 2005  31st October, 2008
(“Mr Rusli") ZZThE ZETThF ZTENF
Z ZRusli Hendrawant £ +A-+%A +—-A-H +A=1+—-H
(TRusli 4 ])
Director Mr Lee Sheng Kuang, 3,600,000 - - (3,600,000 - 0.536  25th October, 2005  1st November, 2005  31st October, 2008
James (‘Mr Lee") “Z%n% —Z%1F ZZENE
BETHRAE ([FRE)) +A=FHA +—-A-H +A=t+-AH
Director Mr Oey Tjie Ho 500,000 - - (500,000) - 0.536  25th October, 2005  1st November, 2005  31st October, 2008
(“Mr Oey") “ERRE “EEERE —ETNE
EEEINEL([BRE]) +A=FHA +—-A—-A TA=+—H
Continuous contract employees 1,200,000 - (500,000) (700,000) - 0.536  25th October, 2005  1st November, 2005  31st October, 2008
SEAYEE (Note) k> Sk ik —REN\F
(Bzt) +A-t+nA +—-A-H +A=t+-AH
8,900,000 - (4,100,000)  (4,800,000) -
Note: Bt s

The weighted average closing price per share immediately before the dates
on which the share options were exercised was HK$0.65.

No share options were granted or cancelled during the year.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Mr Rusli Hendrawan (Chairman)

Mr Lee Sheng Kuang, James (Managing Director)
Mr Oey Tjie Ho

Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie

Mr Cheung Kwok Ming?*

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry, B.8.S., J.P #

Mr Lau Siu Ki, Kevin#

# Independent Non-Executive Director

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-
laws, Mr Lee Sheng Kuang, James, Mr Oey Tije Ho and Mr
Tang Chak Lam, Charlie shall retire from office by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 13th September, 2001, a management services
agreement (the “Management Services Agreement”’) was
entered into between Carry Wealth Limited (“CWL”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
Shinning Century Limited (“SCL”) pursuant to which, CWL
provides SCL with management services in Hong Kong at
a management fee at 6% of the total sales at the invoiced
value to customers of SCL for each calendar month. The
terms of the Management Services Agreement, which are
automatically renewed annually unless terminated by either
party, as amended by a supplemental agreement dated
6th September, 2004 entered between CWL and SCL (the
“First Supplemental Agreement”) will expire on 31st August,
2007 and be automatically renewed every 3 years and until
terminated pursuant to the terms thereof for the purpose
of complying with Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”).

On 24th November, 2006, CWL and SCL had entered
into the second supplemental agreement (the “Second
Supplemental Agreement”) to further amend the terms
of the Management Services Agreement so as to comply
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for determining
the annual cap amounts for the years ending 31st
December, 2007, 2008 and 2009. Pursuant to the Second
Supplemental Agreement, the terms of the Management
Services Agreement (as amended by the First Supplemental
Agreement) expire on 31st December, 2006 instead of 31st
August, 2007 and will be renewed every 3 years unless
terminated pursuant to the terms of the Management
Services Agreement.

SCL is owned as to 70% by the Company indirectly and
30% by Ms Chen Mei Chuan, Jennifer. Ms Chen is also
the managing director of SCL. The ongoing transactions
between CWL and SCL as aforesaid constitute connected
transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules.
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The independent non-executive directors of the Company
have reviewed the transactions and confirmed that the
transactions have been entered into:

() in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company and CWL;
(ii)

on normal commercial terms; and
(i) in accordance with the Management Services
Agreement (as amended by the First and Second
Supplemental Agreements) on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

In accordance with paragraph 14A.38 of the Listing
Rules, the board of directors engaged the auditor of the
Company to perform certain factual finding procedures on
the above connected transactions on a sample basis in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Related Services
4400 “Engagements to Perform Agreed-Upon Procedures
Regarding Financial Information” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has
reported their factual findings on the selected samples
based on the agreed procedures to the board of directors.

The aggregate amount of management fees charged by
CWL amounted to HK$3,617,000 which did not exceed
the cap amount of HK$7,600,000 as disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 1st December, 2006.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

As at 31st December, 2008, the interests of the directors
of the Company in the shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept under section 352 of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) are as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company

ESES

:EEJKEJ}— A=+—H REE
%&Eﬁi‘f% (TR LBERD]) S
B2GEMERATHF < ERMIRE L
MBETAEZETESFRRHNRESTR
(MEESTRI) AR E KB FrE L2
B NABEERBARFRN 2w
e

F 2 FHARE{E0.10# jT ¥ il At

Number of ordinary shares

EERRGHE
Percentage
Name of Personal Family Corporate Other Total of issued
Director Capacity interests interests interests interests interests share capital
RERT
EEnE a4 A& RikER NEER Hib & wEE REEIH
Mr Rusli Beneficial owner 3,600,000 - - - 3,600,000 0.96
Ruslift & ERBERA
Interest of controlled - - 169,062,000 - 169,062,000 45.46
corporations (Note)
RETEE < #x (F3E)
Mr Lee Interest of controlled - - 169,062,000 - 169,062,000 45.46
corporations (Note)
£ REHEE B (FsE)
Mr Tang Chak Beneficial owner 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 0.53
Lam, Charlie
HERLE ERBEBA
Note: B 5T

The above shares were held by Respected International Limited (“RIL”),
which was ultimately owned as to 46.03% and 46.03% by Mr Rusli and Mr
Lee respectively through their respective wholly-owned companies.

All the interests stated above represent long positions.
Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December, 2008, none
of the directors or chief executives of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL

SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December, 2008, the interests of the substantial

shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules),

other than

directors or chief executives, of the Company in the shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO are as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company
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Percentage of

Number of issued share
Name of shareholder Capacity ordinary shares capital
HEe#T
IRER & B 6 EERROBE RAEAB DL
RIL (Note 1) Beneficial owner 169,062,000 45.46
RIL (P =E1) ExnEBA
Bright Asia Worldwide Corporation Interest of a controlled 169,062,000 45.46
(Note 1) corporation
Bright Asia Worldwide Corporation — SZ3E &4 B 2 %
(Mg&E1)
Maxflow Investment Ltd. (Note 1) Interest of a controlled 169,062,000 45.46
corporation
Maxflow Investment Ltd. ( Ff5E1) ZEESEE 2
Greatwood Investment Trading Beneficial owner 62,000,000 16.67
Limited (Note 2)
Greatwood Investment Trading EmlB A
Limited ( ff5E2)
Mr Yeung Sze Kei (Note 2) Interest of a controlled 62,000,000 16.67
corporation
BHEELE (Hi2) RiEHEE 2 #Ew
Preferable Situation Assets Limited Beneficial owner 18,701,000 5.02
(Note 3)
Preferable Situation Assets Limited  B#H#EA A
(M$5E3)
Mr Webb David Michael (Note 3) Beneficial owner 3,323,000 0.89
Webb David Michael%t 4 (K £3) EnEAA
Interest of a controlled 18,701,000 5.02
corporation
RiEHEE 2 #Ew
EEEZERERLT 2008 FEHE 43



44 Carry Wealth Holdings Limited

Report of the Directors EEEH &

Notes:

1. 169,062,000 shares in the Company were held by RIL, a company in
which Mr Rusli and Mr Lee held 46.03% and 46.03% equity interests
respectively through Bright Asia Worldwide Corporation, which was
wholly-owned by Mr Rusli and Maxflow Investment Ltd., which was
wholly-owned by Mr Lee. Accordingly, Mr Rusli, Mr Lee, Bright Asia
Worldwide Corporation and Maxflow Investment Ltd. were all deemed
to be interested in 169,062,000 shares in the Company. These
interests were duplicated with the interests of Mr Rusli and Mr Lee as
disclosed in the section headed “INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS”.

2. These shares were held by Greatwood Investment Trading Limited,
which was wholly-owned by Mr Yeung Sze Kei.

3. Pursuant to a notice filed under Part XV of the SFO, 18,701,000
shares in the Company were held by Preferable Situation Assets
Limited, which was wholly-owned by Mr Webb David Michael.
Accordingly, Mr Webb David Michael was deemed to be interested in
18,701,000 shares in the Company. Mr Webb David Michael had an
aggregate interest in 22,024,000 shares.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. Save
as disclosed above, as at 31st December, 2008, none of
the substantial shareholders, other than directors or chief
executives, of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO.

INTERESTS OF OTHER PERSONS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “INTERESTS
OF DIRECTORS” and “INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS” above, the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO shows that as at 31st
December, 2008, the Company had not been notified of any
other person who had an interest or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company was entered into or existed during the year.

Annual Report 2008

B 3

1. RIL¥ B A2 7]169,062,0000% B 1+ i Rusli
9 4 R 24 A& 4 iBBright Asia Worldwide
Corporation ( BRuslit £ 2 & #HH) &
Maxflow Investment Ltd. ( BZ L E2EH
A) 5D RIFE A Z A A146.03% [ 46.03% 2 %
KNz o B It - Ruslifk &+ & % A& - Bright
Asia Worldwide Corporation & Maxflow
Investment Ltd. W R IE#H B K Q A
169,062,000/% i {7 < #e 2w o Wt i B [ EE
EHEm | —E TR ERusIi £ RF R ARG
ZHEmEE

2. WERLDBBHEELEEZ2ERAZ
Greatwood Investment Trading Limited#¥

Ao

3. BR—OBEEFRBEKRNIEXVEFREZE
4 K2 F)18,701,000% i% {7 F1 Webb David
Michaelst 4 % & ¥ & 2 Preferable Situation
Assets Limited#F A - A It - Webb David
Michael 5t 4 #4814 B 4~ 2 7118,701,000%
B% 15 7 # 25  Webb David MichaelsE £ 34
& #£22,024,0000% B 19 2 7 ©

Bt BB A A © B L3P
WEEI RIEE T LB R D] F3361F
RERTHRFZECH R-_ZFTNF
TZA=1t—B ARRAZETERR (K
EFAHZSTHABIN) RAR AN K
HERD T EREEEAERIOAR -

Htt Atz

BREXTEFEHE] M TERRER]
METFTIEE SN RIBEZF R RAEERIIE
BBHMERATHIF B R-FF
NF+ZRA=+—B ARFLEERBM
EEAM AT HA AR E B 5AE R
D2 R A °

BHEY

RERNALBEITIHFEBBAARRRE
HEMEBRIBDEHZEERITHAL

° e



MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and customers
are as follows:

()  Purchases

—  the largest supplier 22%

- five largest suppliers combined 58%
(i) Sales

—  the largest customer 34%

—  five largest customers combined 87%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an
interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above at
any time during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the Laws of Bermuda.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Lee Sheng Kuang, James
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 3rd April, 2009
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46 Carry Wealth Holdings Limited

Independent Auditor’s Report

PRICEAATERHOUSE COPERS

B 2B A RS

BORKEGMEBH

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CARRY WEALTH HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Carry Wealth Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 48 to
160, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31st December, 2008, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Annual Report 2008

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince's Building
Central, Hong Kong
Telephone (852) 2289 8388
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Independent Auditor’s Report

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
the Group as at 31st December, 2008 and of the Group's
loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 3rd April, 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 # =

mEWRARR

—ETNFF= A=t —ALEE

2008 2007
—EBNE —TTLHF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 52 TER FHET
Revenues Yoz 5 880,114 1,056,861
Cost of sales SHE AR 7 (707,215) (817,290)
Gross profit EF 172,899 239,571
Other losses — net HibE5E— 58 6 (58,201) (2,659)
Selling expenses HHE R X 7 (33,907) (36,860)
Administrative expenses THRAX 7 (115,400) (120,575)
Operating (loss)/profit e (B8, F (34,609) 79,477
Finance income & WA 8 4,076 6,730
Finance costs %ﬂﬁﬁﬁ 9 (5,566) (6,637)
Share of (loss)/profit of associates DIGEEE R A
(E518) & F (1,402) 1,738
(Loss)/profit before income tax R PSRl
(E18) & F (37,501) 81,308
Income tax expense FTS R X 10 (4,533) (27,228)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(B18),/5F (42,034) 54,080
Attributable to: B THIA TR
Equity holders of the Company RABIERFFE A 11 (40,681) 48,950
Minority interests DER R E R (1,353) 5,130
(42,034) 54,080
(Loss)/earnings per share for FRNHARAIER
(loss)/profit attributable to BHEAEGZ
the equity holders of (B8], wmilz
the Company during the year Bk (EBE) &7
- basic (HK cents) —E AR (B) 12 (10.97) 13.40
— diluted (HK cents) — 858 (BAl) 12 (10.97) 13.23
Dividends @S] 13 7,437 29,407
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these  BEMI 2B BRI SR T EHRER 230

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

SEEERER

As at 31st December, 2008 R=-ZEZENF+=-HA=+—H

2008 2007
—EBENFE _—ZTT+HHF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 7 FET FAET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Goodwill BES 16 - 1,100
Properties, plant and equipment Y% BB R&E 17 145,143 162,141
Investment properties KEWE 18 - 28,300
Leasehold land and land use rights ~ FH& £ b [ 1 b {5 F 42 19 13,042 12,546
Interests in associates i EA/NC Il 21 48,951 49,154
Deferred income tax assets BEFTS R EE 29 2,679 2,868
Financial assets at fair value BARBEAEBREZ
through profit or loss TREE 22 8,604 9,314
218,419 | 255,423
Current assets RBEE
Inventories rE 24 111,783 86,943
Trade and other receivables B 5 K& H b fE W GRIE 25 154,505 138,788
Financial assets at fair value BARBEAEREZ
through profit or loss TREE 22 30,882 12,900
Cash and cash equivalents RehkAEEFEEE 27 63,508 109,952
360,678 = 348,583
Total assets MEE 579,097 604,006
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable HZAQXTEFIZFEA
to the Company’s equity holders EBiEzEXRR#HE
Share capital A& A 31 37,187 36,777
Other reserves Hib & 32 30,829 37,806
Retained earnings R & F
— Proposed final dividend —#K R EARR B - 18,398
— Others —HAh 185,091 232,730
253,107 325,711
Minority interests DB R E R 7,793 8,247
Total equity R 260,900 333,958
BEERERAT 2008 FEHRE 49



Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEEREBR

As at 31st December, 2008 R-ZEZENF+=-HA=+—H

2008 2007
—BRENE —TTF
Note HK$’000 HK$’ 000
B 3T FE T FET
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Bank borrowings RITEN 28 22,188 33,305
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEFFE M BE 29 5,194 7,384
. 27,382 40,689
Current liabilities REAEE
Derivative financial instruments THEEMIA 26 21,768 12,617
Trade and other payables B 5 M H b fE T 5008 30 126,836 128,333
Income tax payable FE P10 16,805 15,636
Bank borrowings |ITEK 28 125,406 72,773
290,815 229,359
Total liabilities wEE 318,197 270,048
Total equity and liabilities BERREE 579,097 604,006
Net current assets REBEEFE 69,863 119,224
Total assets less current liabilities #EEERAHERE 288,282 374,647

Lee Sheng Kuang, James

FBX
Managing Director
EFHLE

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Balance Sheet

EEREX

As at 31st December, 2008 R=-ZEZENF+=-HA=+—H

2008 2007
—BENE —ZTTLF
Note HK$’000 HK$’ 000
B 5 FHExT FET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZI®E 20 149,242 165,938
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries =N 23 103,865 86,297
Other receivables H th JE W SRR 25 713 1,119
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFHBEEAEE 27 714 166
105,292 87,582
Total assets HWEE 254,534 253,520
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable HZAQTEFEFEA
to the Company’s equity holders BREERRK#E
Share capital AR A 31 37,187 36,777
Other reserves Hib B 32 191,216 190,103
Retained earnings RE & F
— Proposed final dividend — R R HAR B - 18,398
— Others —H b 25,014 3,776
Total equity HWpER 253,417 249,054
LIABILITIES a&
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals HMEMNRIBERESTER 30 17 4,466
Total liabilities wEE 1,117 4,466
Total equity and liabilities HERREE 254,534 253,520
Net current assets REBEEFE 104,175 83,116
Total assets less current liabilities AEEBABEE 253,417 249,054

Lee Sheng Kuang, James

X
Managing Director
EERTE

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

Tang Chak Lam, Charlie

Executive Director

BEEERERLQA

HITEF

BE B 2 B SEAE A UL T4 A B R R 2 BB

1/'\ °

2008 FEW®RE

51



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity #HRe®#z28%

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 #HZ2 _-—ZTZENF+_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders
of the Company

EAREREEAERN

Share Other Retained Minority
capital reserves earnings Interests Total

2
& Hitf#E REEF BRER Fo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FHEL FEL FEL FEL
Balance at 1st January, 2007 RZTE+F—A—B#% 36,105 33,660 235,163 2,594 307,522

Fair value gain, net of tax: /N 1 Sz MERFEIE

- available-for-sale financial assets AftEEreREE - 22 - - 22

- properties, plant and equipment *%% BB &% - 340 - 25 365
Disposal of available-for-sale financial HERHHEZ L REE

assets - (392) - - (392)
Currency translation differences N ZERE - 1,247 - 1,079 2,326
Net income recognised directly in RERERERFRA

equity - 1,217 - 1,104 2,321
Profit for the year FEEF - - 48,950 5,130 54,080
Total recognised income for 2007 T LFERABLHA - 1,217 48,950 6,234 56,401
Employee share option scheme: EEERIENE:

- exercise of share options T A 672 2,929 - - 3,601
2006 final dividend paid ENZETAERERE - - (21,976) (581) (22,557)
2007 interim dividend paid EN-TEERERE - - (11,009) - (11,009)

672 2,929 (32,985) (581) (29,965)
Balance at 31st December, 2007 RZTZLF
+-A=+—H&#% 36,777 37,806 251,128 8,247 333,958
Balance at 1st January, 2008 W=TT/\F-A—-H&H%H | 36777 37,806 251,128 8,247 333,958
Fair value gain, net of tax: DB ARFE:

- properties, plant and equipment e /EN S - 807 - 60 867
Currency translation differences R - (8,897) - 1,467 (7,430)
Net (expense)/income recognised REFERERZ

directly in equity F (X)), /WA - (8,090) - 1,527 (6,563)
Loss for the year FREEE - - (40,681) (1,353) (42,034)
Total recognised (expense)/income —ET)\FEHR

for 2008 (%) /WA = iBLO?Q) o ,(4,0L6,81,) 77777 1 Z‘} o 7({815792)
Employee share option scheme: EEERE 2

- exercise of share options T AL 410 1,788 - - 2,198

- lapse of share options —E%Hﬂéz%?ﬂ - (675) 675 - -
2007 final dividend paid ENZZETERARE - - (18,594) (628) (19,222)
2008 interim dividend paid ENZZETNFREHRE - - (7,437) - (7,437)

,,,,, 40 118 (258356 (628)  (24,461)
Balance at 31st December, 2008 RZZEZNEF
+-A=+—H#&% 37,187 30,829 185,091 7,793 260,900
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these  BEMI ZBisFi@B Xtk HR A MK RE 230
7aN °

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 # =

GEREREXR

ZEENF+ A=+ —HILFE

2008 2007
—EBENFE _—TTLF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
g FET FAET
Cash flows from RETH2HESRE
operating activities
Cash (used in)/generated K& (R BEEZ
from operations R e 33(a) (74,845) 120,243
Dividend income received RKEETRAESZ
from listed equity securities Ix B A 637 -
Interest paid 25 & (5,566) (6,637)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EHEBNEH (188) (18,583)
Overseas tax paid B &8N IR (5,986) (4,000)
Net cash (used in)/generated from e TS (TR EE
operating activities IR & FRE (85,948) 91,023
Cash flow from investing activities REFZEH 2B LSHRE
Purchase of properties, BEVE KELEE
plant and equipment (15,326) (70,293)
Proceeds from disposal of HE Y- Jﬂ%&
properties, plant and equipment XA FTIS RIA 3,017 4,130
Proceeds from disposal of H 1A W) 2 TS 2K IE
investment properties 35,600 -
Dividend income received WE—RHEE R A2
from an associate Az 24 A 2,086 2,899
Decrease in time deposits 7E Bi1F 50R > - 3,470
Interest received B F B 2,356 6,730
Net cash generated from/(used in) WEEESEL, (FTH)
investing activities FIH e 27,733 (53,064)
Cash flows from AMETE 2RSSR
financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of BTEBRATEIA
ordinary shares 2,198 3,601
Proceeds from bank borrowings BT E TG 33(b) 613,492 413,195
Repayments of bank borrowings ~ BEE{TEX 33(b) (571,976) (400,772)
Dividends paid to equity holders 2 AR AI#EZ
of the Company BFE ARE (26,031) (32,985)
Dividends paid to a minority B — B AR
shareholder of a subsidiary —HZLERERE (628) (581)
Net cash generated from/(used in) MEEEREL, (FTE)
financing activities FIRE 17,055 (17,542)
Effect of foreign exchange INBEXREE B
rate changes (5,284) (1,918)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and R& NIR&EHEIER
cash equivalents ZF CRA) (46,444) 18,499
Cash and cash equivalents FYReAReFEBEIEE
at beginning of the year 109,952 91,453
Cash and cash equivalents FrRReEREFEIEE
at end of the year 63,508 109,952
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these  BEMI 2B BRI S5 A6 T HEHRER 230

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) manufactures and
trades garment products. The Group has production
facilities in Indonesia, Lesotho, El Salvador and
Mainland China.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The address of its registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000),
unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 3rd
April, 2009.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRS”).
They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
buildings, available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments) at fair value through profit
or loss.
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B R ERR MR

Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHREHEE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RUEE(E\E)
The preparation of financial statements in BEEEYHEWMEED N
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain BHREZHEBEL TE THER
critical accounting estimates. It also requires githE -RAF EEAREE
management to exercise its judgement in the SRR zBRER FTEEE
process of applying the Group’s accounting BITEHAG FTEELHRS
policies. The areas involving a higher degree FlET SR REMR s XEF
of judgement or complexity, or areas where R MG FT RS Bk
assumptions and estimates are significant to the BREZ &K 2R T4
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in B o
Note 4.
The Group meets its day to day working capital REBFRRITHENENH
requirements through facilities obtained from PREBESAT -HEP—MHR
banks. One of the banks has financial covenant THBEVBRELY BERAEE
requirements that the Group’s consolidated net ZEHEEBLEEFENELIRN
tangible worth cannot be less than HK$240 million 240,000,000/ 7T * M HER & iR
and its ratio of consolidated net bank debt to TEBFEHGEEBEREEF
consolidated net tangible worth cannot be higher BZHEERBFENR05 -BEE
than 0.5. Net tangible worth is defined as the EFEZERRRNATIERFE
capital and reserves attributable to the Company’s BEAEBGEERRFEE MR
equity holders and net bank debt is defined as the EBEFELERRAEE 2R
total bank borrowings of the Group less its cash RITEFRRHEE e RREEFE
and cash equivalents. HH-
The directors consider that with the ongoing EERABETRETERETE
support from its bankers and major customers, the EF—EXRF T~EEERER
Group should be able to generate sufficient cash RARREBHFEEFTHREERE
flows from future operations to cover its operating AT HEERZA - BHERE
costs and should be able to meet its financing TEVBEE-
obligations.
Based on the directors’ assessments, taking BEEKEREFRBE 268
account of reasonably possible changes in trading AlREF E IR FTIERT (L N K E
performance, the Group expects to be able to TEEAA] PR RO B S gk A HA R
meet its financial obligations as and when they fall AARRTZERAZ R HRMBE
due in the coming twelve months from the date TRt  EFRREBFELE
of these financial statements. Accordingly, the EERRVBHREKTIBIRE -
directors are of the opinion that it is appropriate
to prepare the financial statements on a going
concern basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHREHEE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

21 REEHE(E)
R-BENFLEKZIEET

(a) Amendment and interpretations effective (a)

56 Carry Wealth Holdings Limited

in 2008

The HKAS 39, ‘Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement’, amendment
on reclassification of financial assets permits
reclassification of certain financial assets out
of the held-for-trading and available-for-sale
categories if specified conditions are met. The
related amendment to HKFRS 7, ‘Financial
instruments: Disclosures’, introduces
disclosure requirements with respect to
financial assets reclassified out of the held-
for-trading and available-for-sale categories.
The amendment is effective prospectively
from 1st July, 2008. This amendment does
not have any impact on the Group’s financial
statements as the Group has not reclassified
any financial assets.

HK(IFRIC) - Int 11, ‘HKFRS 2 - Group
and treasury share transactions’, provides
guidance on whether share-based
transactions involving treasury shares or
involving group entities (for example, options
over a parent’s shares) should be accounted
for as equity-settled or cash-settled share-
based payment transactions in the stand-
alone accounts of the parent and group
companies. This interpretation does not
have an impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Annual Report 2008
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Amendment and interpretations effective

(b)

in 2008 (Continued)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14, ‘HKAS 19 — The limit on
a defined benefit asset, minimum funding
requirements and their interaction’, provides
guidance on assessing the limit in HKAS 19
on the amount of the surplus that can be
recognised as an asset. It also explains how
the pension asset or liability may be affected
by a statutory or contractual minimum funding
requirement. This interpretation does not
have any impact on the Group’s financial
statements, as the Group has a pension
deficit and is not subject to any minimum
funding requirements.

Interpretations effective in 2008 but not
relevant to the Group

The following interpretation to published
standards is mandatory for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2008 but is not relevant to the Group’s
operations:

HK(IFRIC) - Int 12, ‘Service Concession
arrangements’

B R ERR MR

2 FEERIBREE (&)

21 REEHE(E)

(@)

(b)

BEEERERLQA
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Notes to the Financial Statements B % 3R 3% M &+

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2 FEERIBREE (&)

21 REEHE(E)
(c) [HKLNEEXEE I AELE

(c) Standards, amendments and

interpretations to existing standards that
are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group

The following standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards have
been published and are mandatory for the
Group’s accounting periods beginning on or
after 1st January, 2009 or later periods, but
the Group has not early adopted them:

HKAS 1 (Revised), ‘Presentation of Financial
Statements’ (effective from 1st January,
2009). HKAS 1 (Revised) requires all
owner changes in equity to be presented
in a statement of changes in equity. All
comprehensive income is presented in
one statement of comprehensive income
or in two statements (a separate income
statement and a statement of comprehensive
income). It requires presenting a statement
of financial position as at the beginning of
the earliest comparative period in a complete
set of financial statements when there are
retrospective adjustments or reclassification
adjustments. However, it does not change
the recognition, measurement or disclosure
of specific transactions and other events
required by other HKFRSs. The Group will
apply HKAS 1 (Revised) from 1st January,
2009.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt iRz KT

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHREHEE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

21 REEHE(E)
(c) [HKLNEEXEE I AELE

(c) Standards, amendments and

interpretations to existing standards that
are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKAS 283 (Revised), ‘Borrowing costs’
(effective from 1st January, 2009). The
amendment requires an entity to capitalise
borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset (one that takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for use or sale) as
part of the cost of that asset. The option of
immediately expensing those borrowing costs
will be removed. The Group will apply HKAS
23 (Revised) retrospectively from 1st January,
2009 but is currently not applicable to the
Group as there are no qualifying assets and
it is not expected to have any impact on the
Group's financial statements.

HKAS 27 (Revised), ‘Consolidated and
separate financial statements’ (effective
from 1st July, 2009). The revised standard
requires the effects of all transactions with
non-controlling interests to be recorded in
equity if there is no change in control and
these transactions will no longer result in
goodwill or gains and losses. The standard
also specifies the accounting when control
is lost. Any remaining interest in the entity is
re-measured to fair value and a gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss. The Group
will apply HKAS 27 (Revised) prospectively
to transactions with non-controlling interests
from 1st January, 2010.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B % 3R 3% M &+

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2 FEERIBREE (&)

21 REEHE(E)
(c) [HKLNEEXEE I AELE

(c) Standards, amendments and

interpretations to existing standards that
are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKAS 32 (Amendment), ‘Financial
instruments: Presentation’, and HKAS 1
(Amendment), ‘Presentation of financial
statements’ — ‘Puttable financial instruments
and obligations arising on liquidation’
(effective from 1st January, 2009). The
amended standards require entities to
classify puttable financial instruments and
instruments, or components of instruments
that impose on the entity an obligation to
deliver to another party a pro rata share of
the net assets of the entity only on liquidation
as equity, provided the financial instruments
have particular features and meet specific
conditions. The Group will apply the HKAS 32
(Amendment) and HKAS 1(Amendment) from
1st January, 2009, but it is not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt iRz KT

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2 FEERIBREE (&)

21 REEHE(E)
(c) [HKLNEEXEE I AELE

(c) Standards, amendments and

interpretations to existing standards that
are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment), ‘First time adoption
of HKFRS’ and HKAS 27 ‘Consolidated and
separate financial statements’ (effective from
1st January, 2009). The amended standard
allows first-time adopters to use a deemed
cost of either fair value or the carrying
amount under previous accounting practice
to measure the initial cost of investments
in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities
and associates in the separate financial
statements. The amendment also removes
the definition of the cost method from HKAS
27 and replaces it with a requirement to
present dividends as income in the separate
financial statements of the investor. The
Company will apply HKAS 27 (Amendment)
prospectively from 1st January, 2009 in
its separate financial statements. This
amendment is not relevant to the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B % 3R 3% M &+

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2 FEERIBREE (&)

21 REEHE(E)
(c) [HKLNEEXEE I AELE

(c) Standards, amendments and

interpretations to existing standards that
are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment), ‘Share-based
payment’ (effective from 1st January, 2009).
The amended standard deals with vesting
conditions and cancellations. It clarifies that
vesting conditions are service conditions
and performance conditions only. Other
features of a share-based payment are not
vesting conditions. As such these features
would need to be included in the grant date
fair value for transactions with employees
and others providing similar services, that
is, these features would not impact the
number of awards expected to vest or
valuation thereof subsequent to grant date.
All cancellations, whether by the entity or
by other parties, should receive the same
accounting treatment. All cancellations,
whether by the entity or by other parties,
should receive the same accounting
treatment. The Group will apply HKFRS 2
(Amendment) from 1st January, 2009, but it is
not expected to have a significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

62 Carry Wealth Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2008

FIER# 2 E R 62T R
HEER ZZFE (&)

BB 15k E R E 298
(1BET) TUAR ) B ER
Nl (RZZEZRF—
Hfatim it E &
/HIJF%IEEF%EEﬂ %
&fﬁﬁ BB T BB G
245 Hﬁwwﬁu%fﬁﬂ;ﬁ
o ARH BEBRNRZ
H b 5 BRI IE 57 B AR o
At W EHBEFTER
FHEEEE REMIBHEE
LURBALTZRZRFRH
EIHHZ’A/’TEW 71BN it
SHBE T ER LY B
?éiﬁ,ﬁﬂﬂ\ B2 BEHE
HEBE-FMAFHE T
G HEMAEL &
AR ST REEA
HE FIEaHHE THBE
B Ham A EL WA
ﬁﬂz SHEREEAR-
REBBER -_ZTNF—
A—HEEREEUMER
EHERF2% (1B85T) - B
EHRTeHALEE 2%
WERBEARNERTE-



Notes to the Financial Statements B # 3Rk & kst

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHREHEE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

21 REEHE(E)
(c) [HKLNEEXEE I AELE

(c) Standards, amendments and

interpretations to existing standards that
are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 3 (Revised), ‘Business combinations’
(effective from 1st July, 2009). The revised
standard continues to apply the acquisition
method to business combinations, with
some significant changes. For example, all
payments to purchase a business are to
be recorded at fair value at the acquisition
date, with contingent payments classified as
debt subsequently re-measured through the
consolidated income statement. There is a
choice on an acquisition by acquisition basis
to measure the non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of
the acquiree’s net assets. All acquisition-
related costs should be expensed. The Group
will apply HKFRS 3 (Revised) prospectively to
all business combinations from 1st January,
2010.

HKFRS 8, ‘Operating segments’ (effective
from 1st January, 2009). HKFRS 8 replaces
HKAS 14 and aligns segment reporting
with the requirements of the US standard
SFAS 131, ‘Disclosures about segments
of an enterprise and related information’.
The new standard requires a ‘management
approach’, under which segment information
is presented on the same basis as that used
for internal reporting purposes. The Group
will apply HKFRS 8 from 1st January, 2009.
The expected impact is still being assessed
in detail by management, but it appears likely
that the number of reportable segments, as
well as the manner in which the segments
are reported, will change in a manner that is
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B % 3R 3% M &+

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2 FEERIBREE (&)

21 REEHE(E)
(c) [HKLNEEXEE I AELE

(c) Standards, amendments and

interpretations to existing standards that
are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 16, ‘Hedges of a net
investment in a foreign operation’ (effective
from 1st October, 2008). HK(IFRIC) - Int
16 clarifies the accounting treatment in
respect of net investment hedging. This
includes the fact that net investment hedging
relates to differences in functional currency
not presentation currency, and hedging
instruments may be held anywhere in the
Group. The requirements of HKAS 21, ‘The
effects of changes in foreign exchange rates’,
do apply to the hedged item. The Group will
apply HK(IFRIC) - Int 16 from 1st January,
2009. It is not expected to have a significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

HKICFPA's improvements to HKFRS published
in October 2008

HKAS 1 (Amendment), ‘Presentation of
financial statements’ (effective from 1st
January, 2009). The amendment clarifies
that some rather than all financial assets
and liabilities classified as held for trading
in accordance with HKAS 39, ‘Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement’
are examples of current assets and liabilities
respectively. The Group will apply the HKAS 1
(Amendment) from 1st January, 2009. It is not
expected to have a significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt iRz KT

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEOHBREE(8|)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RUEE(E\E)
(c) Standards, amendments and (c) RENHEREFIYELR

interpretations to existing standards that
are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKICPA'’s improvements to HKFRS published
in October 2008 (Continued)

HKAS 19 (Amendment), ‘Employee benefits’
(effective from 1st January, 2009)

The amendment clarifies that a plan
amendment that results in a change in the
extent to which benefit promises are affected
by future salary increases is a curtailment,
while an amendment that changes benefits
attributable to past service gives rise to a
negative past service cost if it results in a
reduction in the present value of the defined
benefit obligation.

The definition of return on plan assets
has been amended to state that plan
administration costs are deducted in the
calculation of return on plan assets only
to the extent that such costs have been
excluded from measurement of the defined
benefit obligation.

The distinction between short term and long
term employee benefits will be based on
whether benefits are due to be settled within
or after 12 months of employee service being
rendered.

HKAS 37, ‘Provisions, contingent liabilities
and contingent assets’ requires contingent
liabilities to be disclosed, not recognised.
HKAS 19 has been amended to be
consistent.

The Group will apply the HKAS 19 (Amendment)
from 1st January, 2009.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B % 3R 3% M &+

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2 FEERIBREE (&)

21 REEHE(E)
(c) [HKLNEEXEE I AELE

(c) Standards, amendments and

interpretations to existing standards that
are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKICPA'’s improvements to HKFRS published
in October 2008 (Continued)

HKAS 23 (Amendment), ‘Borrowing costs’
(effective from 1st January, 2009). The
definition of borrowing costs has been
amended so that interest expense is
calculated using the effective interest method
defined in HKAS 39 ‘Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement’. This
eliminates the inconsistency of terms between
HKAS 39 and HKAS 23. The Group will apply
the HKAS 23 (Amendment) prospectively
to the capitalisation of borrowing costs on
qualifying assets from 1st January, 2009.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt iRz KT

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2 FEERIBREE (&)

21 REEHE(E)
(c) [HKLNEEXEE I AELE

(c) Standards, amendments and

interpretations to existing standards that
are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKICPA'’s improvements to HKFRS published
in October 2008 (Continued)

HKAS 28 (Amendment), ‘Investments in
associates’ (and consequential amendments
to HKAS 32, ‘Financial Instruments:
Presentation’ and HKFRS 7, ‘Financial
instruments: Disclosures’) (effective from 1st
January, 2009). An investment in associate is
treated as a single asset for the purposes of
impairment testing and any impairment loss
is not allocated to specific assets included
within the investment, for example, goodwill.
Reversals of impairment are recorded as an
adjustment to the investment balance to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the
associate increases. The Group will apply the
HKAS 28 (Amendment) to impairment tests
related to investment in associates and any
related impairment losses from 1st January,
2009.

HKAS 36 (Amendment), ‘Impairment of
assets’ (effective from 1st January, 2009).
Where fair value less costs to sell is
calculated on the basis of discounted cash
flows, disclosures equivalent to those for
value-in-use calculation should be made. The
Group will apply the HKAS 36 (Amendment)
and provide the required disclosure where
applicable for impairment tests from 1st
January, 2009.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B % 3R 3% M &+

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2 FEERIBREE (&)

21 REEHE(E)
(c) [HKLNEEXEE I AELE

(c) Standards, amendments and

interpretations to existing standards that
are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKICPA'’s improvements to HKFRS published
in October 2008 (Continued)

HKAS 38 (Amendment), ‘Intangible assets’
(effective from 1st January, 2009). A
prepayment may only be recognised in
the event that payment has been made in
advance of obtaining right of access to goods
or receipt of services. The Group will apply
the HKAS 38 (Amendment) from 1st January,
2009.

HKAS 39 (Amendment), ‘Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement’
(effective from 1st January, 2009)

This amendment clarifies that it is possible for
there to be movements into and out of the fair
value through profit or loss category where
a derivative commences or ceases to qualify
as a hedging instrument in cash flow or net
investment hedge.

The definition of financial asset or financial
liability at fair value through profit or loss as
it relates to items that are held for trading is
also amended. This clarifies that a financial
asset or liability that is part of a portfolio
of financial instruments managed together
with evidence of an actual recent pattern of
short-term profit-taking is included in such a
portfolio on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt iRz KT

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards that
are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (Continued)

e  HKICPA’s improvements to HKFRS published
in October 2008 (Continued)

> HKAS 39 (Amendment), ‘Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement’
(effective from 1st January, 2009) (Continued)

~ The current guidance on designating and
documenting hedges states that a hedging
instrument needs to involve a party external
to the reporting entity and cites a segment as
an example of a reporting entity. This means
that in order for hedge accounting to be
applied at segment level, the requirements
for hedge accounting are currently required
to be met by the applicable segment. The
amendment removes this requirement so
that HKAS 39 is consistent with HKFRS
8, ‘Operating segments’ which requires
disclosure for segments to be based on
information reported to the chief operating
decision maker.

~ When remeasuring the carrying amount
of a debt instrument on cessation of fair
value hedge accounting, the amendment
clarifies that a revised effective interest rate
(calculated at the date fair value hedge
accounting ceases) are used.

The Group will apply the HKAS 39 (Amendment)
from 1st January, 2009. It is not expected to have
a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B % $R 3% M &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2 FEERIBREE (&)

21 REEHE(E)
(c) [HKLNEEXEE I AELE

(c) Standards, amendments and

interpretations to existing standards that
are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKICPA’s improvements to HKFRS published
in October 2008 (Continued)

HKFRS 5 (Amendment), ‘Non-current assets
held for sale and discontinued operations’
(and consequential amendment to HKFRS 1,
‘First-time adoption’) (effective from 1st July,
2009). The amendment clarifies that all of a
subsidiary’s assets and liabilities are classified
as held for sale if a partial disposal sale
plan results in loss of control, and relevant
disclosure should be made for this subsidiary
if the definition of a discontinued operation is
met. A consequential amendment to HKFRS
1 states that these amendments are applied
prospectively from the date of transition to
HKFRSs. The Group will apply the HKFRS
5 (Amendment) prospectively to all partial
disposals of subsidiaries from 1st January,
2010.

There are a number of minor amendments
to HKFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments:
Disclosures’, HKAS 8, ‘Accounting policies,
changes in accounting estimates and errors’,
HKAS 10, ‘Events after the balance sheet
date’, HKAS 18, ‘Revenue’ and HKAS 34,
‘Interim financial reporting’ which are not
addressed above. These amendments are
unlikely to have a significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements and have
therefore not been analysed in detail.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt Rz KT

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESREHEE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

21 REEHE(E)
(d) HFAREMAELEBEE

(d) Interpretations and amendments to

existing standards that are not yet
effective and not relevant for the Group’s
operations

HK(IFRIC) - Int 13, ‘Customer loyalty
programmes’ (effective from 1st July, 2008).
HK(IFRIC) — Int 13 is not relevant to the
Group’s operations because none of the
Group’s companies operate any loyalty
programmes.

HK(IFRIC) - Int 15, ‘Agreements for
construction of real estates’ (effective from
1st January, 2009). HK(IFRIC) — Int 15 is
not relevant to the Group’s operations as all
revenue transactions are accounted for under
HKAS 18 and not HKAS 11.

HK(IFRIC) — Int 17 - ‘Distributions of non-
cash assets to owners’ (effective from 1st
July, 2009). HK(IFRIC) — Int 17 is not relevant
to the Group’s operations because none of
the Group’s companies have distributed non-
cash assets to owners.

HK(IFRIC) — Int 18, ‘Transfers of Assets from
Customers’ (effective for transfers on or after
1st July, 2009). HK(IFRIC) - Int 18 is not
relevant to the Group’s operations because
none of the Group’s companies have received
any assets nor cash from customers.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %3k 3% i &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2 FEERIBREE (&)

21 REUEHE (W)
(d) HFAREMAELEBEE

(d) Interpretations and amendments to

existing standards that are not yet
effective and not relevant for the Group’s
operations (Continued)

HKICPA'’s improvements to HKFRS published
in October 2008

HKAS 16 (Amendment), ‘Property, plant and
equipment’ (and consequential amendment to
HKAS 7, ‘Statement of cash flows’) (effective
from 1st January, 2009). Entities whose
ordinary activities comprise renting and
subsequently selling assets present proceeds
from the sale of those assets as revenue and
should transfer the carrying amount of the
asset to inventories when the asset becomes
held for sale. A consequential amendment to
HKAS 7 states that cash flows arising from
purchase, rental and sale of those assets
are classified as cash flows from operating
activities. The amendment will not have an
impact on the Group’s operations because
none of the group companies’ ordinary
activities comprise renting and subsequently
selling assets.

HKAS 20 (Amendment), ‘Accounting for
government grants and disclosure of
government assistance’ (effective from 1st
January, 2009). The amendment will not have
an impact on the Group’s operations as there
are no loans received or other grants from the
government.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt RFT Kzt

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESREHEE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

21 REEE(8)
(d) EARLEMEEKEFEE

(d) Interpretations and amendments to

existing standards that are not yet
effective and not relevant for the Group’s
operations (Continued)

HKICFA's improvements to HKFRS published
in October 2008 (Continued)

HKAS 27 (Amendment), ‘Consolidated and
separate financial statements’ (effective from
1st January, 2009). Where an investment
in a subsidiary that is accounted for under
HKAS 39, ‘Financial instruments: recognition
and measurement’, is classified as held for
sale under HKFRS 5, ‘Non-current assets
held for sale and discontinued operations’,
HKAS 39 would continue to be applied. The
amendment will not have an impact on the
Group’s operations because it is the Group’s
policy for an investment in subsidiary to be
recorded at cost in the standalone accounts
of each entity.

HKAS 28 (Amendment), ‘Investments in
associates’ (and consequential amendments
to HKAS 32, ‘Financial Instruments:
Presentation’ and HKFRS 7, ‘Financial
instruments: Disclosures’) (effective from
1st January, 2009). Where an investment in
associate is accounted for in accordance
with HKAS 39, ‘Financial instruments:
recognition and measurement’ only certain
rather than all disclosure requirements in
HKAS 28 need to be made in addition to
disclosures required by HKAS 32, ‘Financial
Instruments: Presentation’ and HKFRS 7,
‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’. The
amendment will not have an impact on the
Group’s operations because it is the Group’s
policy for an investment in an associate to be
equity accounted in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %3k 3% i &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESREHEE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

21 REUEHE (W)
(d) HFAREMAELEBEE

(d) Interpretations and amendments to

existing standards that are not yet
effective and not relevant for the Group’s
operations (Continued)

HKICPA'’s improvements to HKFRS published
in October 2008 (Continued)

HKAS 29 (Amendment), ‘Financial reporting
in hyperinflationary economies’ (effective from
1st January, 2009). The amendment will not
have an impact on the Group’s operations,
as none of the Group’s subsidiaries or
associates operate in hyperinflationary
economies.

HKAS 31 (Amendment), ‘Interests in joint
ventures’ (and consequential amendments to
HKAS 32 and HKFRS 7) (effective from 1st
January, 2009). The amendment will not have
an impact on the Group’s operations as there
are no interests held in joint ventures.

HKAS 38 (Amendment), ‘Intangible assets’
(effective from 1st January, 2009). The
amendment will not currently have an impact
on the Group’s operations as the Group does
not have intangible assets.

HKAS 40 (Amendment), ‘Investment property’
(and consequential amendments to HKAS
16) (effective from 1st January, 2009). The
amendment will not have an impact on
the Group's operations, as no investment
properties are held by the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt RFT Kzt

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(d) Interpretations and amendments to
existing standards that are not yet
effective and not relevant for the Group’s
operations (Continued)

e  HKICPA’s improvements to HKFRS published
in October 2008 (Continued)

> HKAS 41 (Amendment), ‘Agriculture’
(effective from 1st January, 2009). The
amendment will not have an impact on
the Group’s operations as no agricultural
activities are undertaken.

> The minor amendments to HKAS 20
‘Accounting for government grants and
disclosure of government assistance’, HKAS
29, ‘Financial reporting in hyperinflationary
economies’, HKAS 40, ‘Investment property’
and HKAS 41, ‘Agriculture’, which are not
addressed above. These amendments will not
have an impact on the Group’s operations as
described above.

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and all
of its subsidiaries (the “Group”) made up to 31st
December.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B % $R 3% M &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESREHEE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued) 22 FEREAE (#)
(a) Subsidiaries (a) WEBRA

Subsidiaries are all entities over which
the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than
one half of the voting rights. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that
are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the
Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used
to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries
by the Group. The cost of an acquisition
is measured as the fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange,
plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. ldentifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date, irrespective of the extent of any minority
interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is
less than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired, the difference
is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt Rz KT

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESREHEE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued) 22 FEREAE (#)

(a) Subsidiaries (Continued) (a) BB a (&)

The gain or loss on disposal of a subsidiary
represents the difference between the
proceeds of the sale and the Group’s share of
its net assets together with any unamortised
goodwill or goodwill/negative goodwill taken
to reserves and which was not previously
charged or recognised in the consolidated
income statement and also any related
accumulated exchange fluctuation reserve.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
provision for impairment losses. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR R M RE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(b) Transactions and minority interests

(c)

78 Carry Wealth Holdings Limited

Minority interests represent the interests of
outside shareholders in the operating results
and net assets of subsidiaries.

The Group applies a policy of treating
transactions with minority interests as
transactions with parties external to the
Group. Disposals to minority interests result
in gains and losses for the Group that
are recorded in the consolidated income
statement. Purchases from minority interests
result in goodwill, being the difference
between any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which
the Group has significant influence but
not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting and are initially recognised at
cost.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised
in the consolidated income statement, and
its share of post-acquisition movements
in reserves is recognised in reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of
the investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESREHEE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

22 #8EA (§\)

(c) Associates (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its associate are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the associate. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of the
associate has been changed, where
necessary, to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in investments in
associates are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

2.3 Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and
operations engaged in providing products or
services that are subject to risks and returns
that are different from those of other business
segments. A geographical segment is engaged
in providing products or services within a
particular economic environment that are subject
to risks and returns that are different from
those of segments operating in other economic
environments.

The Group has determined that geographical
segments by location of customers be presented
as the primary reporting format. Business
segments are not presented as the secondary
reporting format because the Group’s turnover
and operations were solely contributed by the
garment manufacturing business
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P ISR R M RE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(@)

(b)

80 Carry Wealth Holdings Limited

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are
remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents
are presented in the consolidated income
statement within ‘finance income or cost’.
All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the consolidated income
statement within ‘other (losses)/gains’ net.

Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in foreign currency
and classified as available-for-sale are
analysed between translation differences
resulting from changes in the amortised cost
of the security and other changes in the
carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences are recognised in income
statement, and other changes in carrying
amount are recognised in equity.

Annual Report 2008
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances (Continued)

(c)

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences
on non-monetary financial assets such as
equities classified as available-for-sale are
included in the available-for-sale reserve in
equity.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the group entities, none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy, that
have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

() assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each
consolidated income statement are
translated at average exchange rates;
and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of
equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings, are taken to shareholders’
equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of the
gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and are translated at the closing rate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %3k 3% i &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Properties, plant and equipment

2 FEERIBREE (&)

25 YE -BERXMH

Buildings, comprises mainly of factories and
offices, are shown at fair value and is determined
by directors based on valuations by external
independent valuers which are performed on
an annual basis, less subsequent depreciation
for buildings. Any accumulated depreciation at
the date of revaluation is eliminated against the
gross carrying amount of the asset and the net
amount is restated to the revalued amount of the
asset. All other plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed in the consolidated
income statement during the financial year in
which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on
revaluation of buildings are credited to fixed asset
revaluation reserve in equity. Decreases that offset
previous increases of the same asset are charged
against fixed asset revaluation reserve directly in
equity and all other decreases are expensed in the
consolidated income statement.

Properties, plant and equipment are depreciated
at rates sufficient to write off their cost or valuation
to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The principal annual
rates are as follow:

Buildings 5%
Leasehold improvements 5% to 20%
Plant equipment and machinery  10% to 30%

Furniture, office equipment
and motor vehicles 10% to 30%
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Properties, plant and equipment (Continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised in the consolidated income
statement. When revalued assets are sold, the
amounts included in fixed assets reserves are
transferred to retained earnings.

Construction-in-progress represents buildings
under construction and is stated at cost. Cost
includes the cost of construction of buildings
and interest charges arising from borrowings
used to finance these assets during the period of
construction or installation and testing, if any. No
provision for depreciation is made on construction-
in-progress until such time as the relevant assets
are completed and ready for intended use. When
the assets concerned are bought into use, the
costs are transferred to buildings and depreciated
in accordance with the policy as stated above.

Leasehold land and land use rights

The up-front prepayments made for leasehold land
and land use rights are accounted for as operating
leases. They are expensed in the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the
periods of the lease or the land use rights, or when
there is impairment, the impairment is expensed in
the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B % $R 3% M &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or
for capital appreciation or both, and that is not
occupied by the companies in the consolidated
group, is classified as investment property.
Investment property comprises land held under
operating leases and buildings held under finance
leases.

Land held under operating leases are classified
and accounted for as investment property when
the rest of the definition of investment property is
met. The operating lease is accounted for as if it
were a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its
cost, including related transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is
carried at fair value. Fair value is based on active
market prices, adjusted if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset.

The fair value of investment property reflects rental
income from current leases and assumptions
about rental income from future leases in the light
of current market conditions. The fair value also
reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows
that could be expected in respect of the property.
Some of those outflows are recognised as a
liability, including finance lease liabilities in respect
of land classified as investment property, while
others, including contingent rent payments, are not
recognised in the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Investment properties (Continued)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the financial
year in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of
an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s
share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired
subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on
acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible
assets. Goodwill is tested for impairment and
carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of
an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation
is made to those cash-generating units or groups
of cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the business combination in which the
goodwill arose identified according to operating
segment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BRIt

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for
example goodwill, are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.

2.10 Financial assets

2.10.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets
in the following categories: at fair value
through profit or loss and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on
the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition and re-evaluates this
designation at every reporting date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

2.10.1 Classification (Continued)

@)

(b)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

This category consists of financial
assets held for trading and those
designated at fair value through profit
or loss at inception. A financial asset
is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term or if so designated
by management. Derivatives are
also categorised as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges.
Assets in this category are classified
as current assets if they are either
held for trading or are expected to
be realised within 12 months of the
balance sheet date.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed
or determined payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They are
included in currents assets, except
for maturities greater than 12 months
after the balance sheet date. These
are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and receivables
comprise ‘trade and other receivables’
and ‘cash and cash equivalent’ in the
balance sheet (Notes 2.12 and 2.13).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B % $R 3% M &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESREHEE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued) 210 &ERMEE ()

2.10.2 Recognition and measurement 2102 BRREE

Purchases and sales of investments are
recognised on trade-date that is the date
on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transactions
costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss are initially recognised at fair value
and transaction costs are expensed in
the consolidated income statement.
Investments are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables
are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair value of the financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss category
are presented in the consolidated income
statement in the year in which they arise.
Dividend income from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of other income when
the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESREHEE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

210 &M EE ()

2.10.2 Recognition and measurement
(Continued)

The fair values of quoted investments are
based on current bid prices. If the market
for a financial asset is not active, the Group
establishes fair value by using valuation
technigues. These include the use of recent
arm’s length transactions, reference to
other instruments that are substantially the
same, discounted cash flow analysis, and
option pricing models, making maximum
use of market inputs and relying as little as
possible on entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet
date whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired.

2.11 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out (FIFO) method. The cost of finished
goods and work in progress comprises design
costs, raw materials, direct labour, other direct
costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses. Costs
of inventories include the transfer from equity of
any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges
relating to purchases of raw materials.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B % $R 3% M &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESREHEE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Trade and other receivables 212B S REMEKRIA

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A provision
for impairment of trade and other receivables
is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the provision is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the original effective interest
rate. The amount of the provision is recognised in
the consolidated income statement. The carrying
amount of the assets is reduced through the use
of an allowance account, and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement within selling and marketing costs.
When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account for trade
receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against selling
and marketing costs in the consolidated income
statement.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities on the balance sheet.

2.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt Rz KT

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

2.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Transaction
costs are incremental costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal
of a financial asset or financial liability. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost where
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the balance sheet date.

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B % $R 3% M &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHBEREE (#)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued) 2A7TEMREBIEFRSRNIE (#)
The current income tax charge is calculated on EHIMEHEZRIEARRD R &
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively ENB AR REE NG EEN
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries EXEERFRIWMAZBER AN GE
where the Company and its subsidiaries and HEEMmSxEEEM 2B E
associates operate and generate taxable income. PstE-TIEEE ARG E
Management periodically evaluates positions taken P2 EBAREAIE R E T
in tax returns with respect to situations in which WEERORI WEBBIER
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation T AR 15 8 HAZE () B FS ML RE =
and establishes provisions where appropriate on B R TR ER TE B o

the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the
tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the RIEFESHBULAEE BE
liability method, on temporary differences arising ENBEZHRERAENGS B
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and BHmExAZERBEEMRMELEZE
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial FRFESEDSEBE - BEME
statements. Deferred income tax is determined MRS HBEMmaEARN -
using taxation rates that have been enacted or B MTEHARMEBEELEME
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date MERSEEMEHABESS
and are expected to apply when the related REEACHERET-

deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only EEEHREEENE KA &L
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable HIE B U BT ERE
profit will be available against which the temporary FES TSR BB T LARESR o

differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary EERT SR LM B A 7 M B &
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries NFIEE Y TR T
and associate, except where the timing of the B ENEEA] AT 4| EE =
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled B 7RBLOER MEBE=8E%K
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary A Y8 B 45 7k 0] A A~ = 2 o] Bl B
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. G\ o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave
are recognised when they are accrued to
employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group principally participates in defined
contributions plans and pays contributions
to publicly or privately administered pension
plans on a mandatory, contractual or
voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expenses
when they are due and if applicable, are
reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme or the plan
prior to vesting fully in the contributions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

2 FEERIBREE (&)

218{ERIRF ()
LR 7 5B 52 3B

(iii) Share-based compensation (iii)

94 Carry Wealth Holdings Limited

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan, under which the
entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options)
of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options
granted, excluding the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions and performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time
period). Non-market vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to vest. The total
amount expensed is recognised over the
vesting period, which is the period over which
all of the specified vesting conditions are to
be satisfied. At each balance sheet date, the
entity revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to vest based
on the non-marketing vesting conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
income statement with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited
to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium when the options are exercised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt Rz KT

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHREHEE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued) 218 EEIEF ()

(iv) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable (a) upon
retirement; or (b) when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date; or (c) whenever an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange
for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits when it is demonstrably
committed to either: terminating the
employment of current employees according
to a detailed formal plan without possibility of
withdrawal; or providing termination benefits
as a result of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due
more than twelve months after balance sheet
date are discounted to present value.

2.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present legal and constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate of the amount can be
made. Provision is not recognised for the future
operating losses.

2.20 Revenue recognition

Revenue from the sale of goods is the fair value of
consideration received or receivable for the sale of
goods and services in the ordinary course of the
Group’s activities. It is recognised on the transfer
of risks and rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when shipment is made.
Revenue is shown net of value-added tax, returns,
rebates and discounts and after eliminating sales
within the Group.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis, taking into account the principal amounts
outstanding and using the effective interest
method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt iR aE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease period.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

2.21 Leases (as the lessee)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases, net of any incentives
received from the lessor, are expensed in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the lease period.

2.22 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value
on the date a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured at their
fair value. Changes in the fair value of those
derivative instruments that do not qualify for
hedge accounting are recognised immediately in
the consolidated income statement within ‘other
gains/(losses) — net’.

2.23 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s equity
holders is recognised as a liability in the Group’s
financial statements in the year in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B3Rk & Ki st

3 MERKRER
31 MEREER

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on minimising potential
adverse effect of these risks on the Group’s
financial performance.

The ongoing global financial crisis has resulted in,
among other things, a lower level of capital market
funding, lower liquidity levels across the banking
sector, and, at times, higher interbank lending
rates and very high volatility in stock and currency
markets. The uncertainties in the global financial
markets have led to bank failures and bank
rescues in the United States of America, Western
Europe and elsewhere. Indeed the full extent of the
impact of the ongoing financial crisis is proving to
be impossible to anticipate or completely guard
against.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and it
has factories and offices in Hong Kong,
Indonesia, El Salvador, Lesotho and Mainland
China. Operating expenses of the Group
are primarily denominated in Hong Kong
dollar, Indonesia Rupiah, Salvadoran Colone,
South African Rand, Renminbi and some in
United States dollar. Thus, it is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from currency
exposures.

The Group’'s sales are principally
denominated in United States dollar.
Management considers that the foreign
exchange risk arises primarily from United
States dollar. Since Hong Kong dollar and
Salvadoran Colone are pegged to United
States dollar, the Group does not expect to
be exposed to relevant currency risks from
these currencies in the near term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B % $R 3% M &

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MEBEBEERE (])
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 MERBERE (\)
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) THERE (&)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) () SMERE (&)
For South Africa Rand and Renminbi, at HREIEFELEAR
31st December, 2008, if United States Vi%é} E/\‘ TENFE+Z
dollar had strengthened/weakened by 5% A=+—H &KX
against these currencies with all other hEE®AE"RZAE
variables held constant, the Group’s loss % il BT H A 2 E
for the year would have been HK$8,000/ ERFIAE - KXEEBZ
HK$8,000 and HK$1,515,000/HK$1,515,000 FEEBEEE RN
respectively (2007: HK$8,000/HK$8,000 A 48,0007 7T /8,000
and HK$1,523,000/HK$1,523,000) higher/ %t &1,515,000/8 7T
lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange /1,515,000 7T ( =
losses/gains on translation of bank balances, T L F:8,0008 T
trade receivables and bank borrowings 8,000/ 7T %1,523,000
denominated in United States dollar. 7 78 ,1,523,000/8 7T ) -
HEEEEEEBAH%MM%E

AHEZRITRET BHE
Yoo MR 1T & i E 4
ZOME R g R, E o

For Indonesia Rupiah, at 31st December, HREEE R_ZEZF
2008, if United States dollar had NF+ZA=+—8"
strengthened/weakened by 10% against EETRMEEAE
this currency with all other variables held B2 B10% T Fr A H AL r]
constant, the Group’s loss for the year would BRERFILE K&
have been HK$2,471,000/HK$2,471,000 Bz FEEBEE®D R
(2007: HK$1,157,000/HK$1,157,000 for 4/ #N12,471,0007%8 JT
a strengthen/weaken of 5%) lower/higher, /2,471,0008 T (= Z
mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/ TEFFERES
losses on translation of bank balances and 2% EB157,0008 T
trade receivables denominated United States 157,000/ 7T) » Lt 5
dollar. EHRBRE LA%EJ‘@Z

RITHT ME S EKGK
& 2 SNE KR s /
fE51E -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt Rz KT

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MERRER (&)

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

31 MERBEER (&)
(a) mHmEE (&)

(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The Group has certain investment in foreign
operations, whose net assets are exposed to
foreign currency translation risks.

For South African Rand and Renminbi, at
31st December, 2008, if United States dollar
had strengthened/weakened by 5% against
these currencies with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s net assets at the
year end would have been HK$191,000/
HK$191,000 and HK$2,147,000/
HK$2,147,000 (2007: HK$562,000/
HK$562,000 and HK$371,000/HK$371,000)
lower/higher, respectively, mainly as a
result of foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of these foreign operations.

For Indonesia Rupiah, at 31st December,
2008, if United States dollar had
strengthened/weakened by 10% against
this currency with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s net assets at the
year end would have been HK$4,754,000/
HK$4,754,000 (2007: HK$1,441,000/
HK$1,441,000 for a strengthen/weaken of
5%) lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation of the
foreign operation in Indonesia.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B % $R 3% M &

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MEBEBEERE (])
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 MERBERE (\)
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) THERE (&)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) () SMERE (&)
The management closely monitors the EREEgITREYERA
fluctuation of other currencies and may fth & & 2 [E R EB)IE N
consider entering into foreign forward Wet®mERERR LR
exchange contracts from time to time so as HASNEE & %9 DARE [ R &
to better manage these foreign exchange % o

exposures, when required.

The Group also has outstanding Indonesia RZZEZTNF+ZA
Rupiah (“IDR”) target redemption forward =+—HB - AKETEE
contracts as at 31st December, 2008. Under AETARIHEEEEB R
these contracts, the Group will receive IDR AERERAEGH -RIES
against delivery of USD. These contracts have A REBBRBERNMNZE
a weighted average strike price of USD 1: IDR TMBPEENEE -ZE A
9,454, #) 2 DRI 1T R (B R
FEIL:9,454HEfE °
At 31st December, 2008, if United States R_ZEZENFE+ A
dollar had strengthened by 10% against =t+—HB - BETHH
Indonesia Rupiah, with all other variables held JEEFE10% mATEHE
constant, the Group’s loss would increase by fth °] B =R FDE
HK$3,305,000. RNEBZEEKEM
3,305,0007% JT °
At 31st December, 2008, if United States RZZEENF+ZA
dollar had weakened by 5% against Indonesia =t+—H &BEXTLHRE
Rupiah, with all other variables held constant, JEEZ1E5% M ATA H A A]
the Group’s loss would decrease by PRERFIE FKH
HK$8,076,000. Z 518 % R 28,076,000
ETT °
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt Rz KT

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MERRER (&)

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

31 MERBEER (&)
(a) mHmEE (&)

(i) Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price change
arising from its financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and derivative financial
instruments.

The Group’s equity investments are securities
listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong. Its investments in derivative financial
instruments are subject to changes in market
prices of the underlying securities listed on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. The
Group diversifies its portfolio in order to
manage the price risk arising from these
investments.

As at 31st December, 2008, if there is an
increase of 5% and a decrease of 25% in
the market prices of the underlying listed
securities in the market linked instrument
with initial investments, provided that all other
variables including the volatility and time
factor were held constant, the Group’s loss
for the year would have decreased/increased
by approximately HK$125,000/HK$637,000
(2007: net profit would have increased/
decreased by HK$475,000/HK$489,000 for
an increase/a decrease by 5%).

As at 31st December, 2008, if there is an
increase of 5% and a decrease of 25% in
the market prices of the underlying listed
securities in the market linked instrument with
swap arrangement, provided that all other
variables including the volatility and time
factor were held constant, the Group’s loss
for the year would have decreased/increased
by approximately HK$229,000/HK$1,133,000
(2007: net profit would have increased/
decreased by HK$47,000/HK$57,000 for an
increase/a decrease by 5%).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B % $R 3% M &

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MEBEBEERE (])
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 MERBERE (\)
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) THERE (&)
(i) Price risk (Continued) (i) 1Bt (&)
Subsequent to year end, the Group has REEHBHE AEED N
disposed of all the listed equity securities E2HR_ZTZENFT=
held as at 31st December, 2008. The loss on AR=+—HHBBZLWm
disposal amounted to HK$2,754,000. RAFES -HEEEE
2,754,000/ JT °

(i) Interest rate risk (i) FUF 2 g
As the Group has no significant interest- HARAEENW |EMERKR
bearing assets, the Group’s income and FEEE - HAKEEZI
operating cash flows are substantially ARKER S RE B
independent of changes in market interest URTSBMNEEE A&
rates. The Group’s interest-rate risk arises ErMEREBRKRERITE
from bank borrowings. As at 31st December, HKRZFEENF+A
2008, borrowings were primarily at floating =t+—H ERETERF
rates. The Group generally has not used B EFE - AEE—K
interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to T AN RiEREPE
interest rate risk. The Group regularly seeks MERERE AEEGTEH
out the most favorable interest rates available SRHEBEMNEZRITE
for its bank borrowings. e
As 31st December, 2008, if interest rates RZZEENF+ZA
on the United States dollar-denominated =+—H BUETFE
borrowings and the Hong Kong dollar- ZEERNUNEBTTHEZ
denominated borrowings have been 10 basis BB/ R XL m, >
point higher/lower with all other variables held 103 MABEAEMEE
constant, the Group’s loss for the year would HR/TE AEECFE
have been HK$192,000 (2007: HK$106,000) BHE& DRI MR
higher/lower, respectively, mainly as a result 192,0008 T (=2 F +
of higher/lower interest expenses on floating F 106,000/ 7T) " LT
rate borrowings. FEZERRFBFEERA

BRI IEI, B TR
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt Rz KT

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MERRER (&)

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1 HMERBER (&)
(b) Credit risk (b) EEEE

Credit risk of the Group mainly arises from
cash and cash equivalents and deposits with
banks and financial institutions, as well as
credit exposures to customers such as trade
receivables. The carrying amount of these
balances in the balance sheet represents the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to its financial assets.

Majority of the Group’s bank deposits
are placed in those banks and financial
institutions which are independently rated
with a rating of ‘A-’ or above. Management
does not expect any losses from non-
performance by these banks and financial
institutions as they have no default history in
the past.

Under the ongoing global financial crisis,
debtors of the Group may be affected by
the unfavorable economic conditions and
the lower liquidity situation, which could in
turn impact their ability to repay the amounts
owed. Deteriorating operating conditions
for debtors may also have an impact on
management’s cash flow forecasts and
assessment of the impairment of receivables.
To the extent that information is available,
management has properly reflected revised
estimate of expected future cash flows in their
impairment assessments.

The credit quality of the customers is
assessed based on its financial position, past
experience and other factors. The Group
has policies in place to ensure that sales
of products are made to customers with
appropriate credit histories.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR R M RE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(c)

104 Carry Wealth Holdings Limited

As at 31st December, 2008, the Group has a
concentration of credit risk given that the top
5 customers account for 86% (2007: 81%) of
the Group’s total year end trade receivable
balance. However, the Group does not
believe that the credit risk in relation to these
customers is significant because they have no
history of default in recent years.

The Group performs periodic credit
evaluations of its customers. The Group’s
historical experience in collection of trade and
other receivables falls within the recorded
allowances and management is of the opinion
that provision for uncollectible receivables is
not necessary.

Liquidity risk

Management monitors the Group’s liquidity
reserve and cash and cash equivalents on the
basis of expected cash flows.

Annual Report 2008
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt Rz KT

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MERBRERE (\|)
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 MERBERE (\)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) nEBELELE (&)
The table below analyses the Group’s TROWMAEEN B
financial liabilities and net-settled derivative BELFEETESR
financial liabilities into relevant maturity BE RRBEEND A
groupings based on the remaining period A REREERBERHA
at the balance sheet to the contractual AP EOFSEM
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the EToM - TREENS
table are the contractual undiscounted cash BHAGHRTIRIREN -
flows. Balances due within 12 months equal MRATIRM T E TR W
their carrying balances, as the impact of SETE -+ =B A A B B A 45
discounting is not significant. MRAENEREE-
Group
PN |
Between Between

Within 1 and 2 and

1 year 2 years 5 years Total

-FR —-EZMERN —ZIFER @t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR TR THET

Bank borrowings RITER 125,406 16,121 6,067 147,594
Bank interest payables FEfHR1THI S 2,099 725 77 2,901
Trade and other payables Z % K EMENHIE | 126,836 - - 126,836
Derivative financial TESMITA

instruments 568 - - 568

At 31st December, 2008 R=-ZFZENF

+=ZHA=+-H 254,909 16,846 6,144 277,899
Bank borrowings RITER 72,773 12,916 20,389 106,078
Bank interest payables FERTIRTTHI S 3,848 1,905 1,131 6,884
Trade and other payables Z 5 K EAME5HIE 128,333 - - 128,333

At 31st December, 2007 RZZEZAF
+-A=+—1 204,954 14,821 21,520 241,295
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Notes to the Financial Statements BRIt

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3 MEERRER (&)

3.1 MBERBER (&)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) nEBELELE (&)
Company
b NN
Between Between
Within 1 and 2 and
1 year 2 years 5 years Total
—-FR —EWMEFR ZEIFR @t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FET FET FET TET
Other payables and Hitt ERRER
accruals, at 31st EFER
December, 2008 RZEENE
+=A=+-8 1,117 - - 1,117
Other payables and Hfth e ﬁ/TAIE&
accruals, at 31st fEsT&H
December, 2007 m:zgtﬁ
+=ZR=+— 4,466 - - 4,466

The table below analyses the Group’s
derivative financial instruments that will be
settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at
the balance sheet to the contractual maturity
date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Balances due within 12 months equal
their carrying balances as the impact of

B R ERAR MR
3 MEERRER (&)

31 MERBERE (\)

(c) )ﬁgﬁﬁ/ﬁlff?(ﬁg)
Tﬁiﬁiﬁém EEECE\EEEEI’J

%%TK EAZ&HE*F_{
AN GRS N E

discounting is not significant. Eﬁﬁﬁ °
Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years
PR—F -—-EZWMERN ZZEILFR BENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TAET TAT FTAT
At 31st December, 2008 R=-ZENF
+=A=t-8
() Market linked () FBESZHEZ
instrument with miGEHTE
swap arrangement
Outflow i 7,800 - - -
(i) Target redemption (i) BIZAEME
forward contracts RZHAEYH
Outflow (Note (a)) Mg (M) 91,838 - - -
Inflow (Note (a)) MAR (K@) 79,292 - - -
At 31st December, 2007 e S
+:HE+ A
() Market linked () FIBESAZHZ
instrument with s T A
swap arrangement
Outflow (Note (b)) Mg (ME(0)) - 7,800 - -
Note (a) B 3% (a)

Under these contracts, the Group will receive Indonesia
Rupiah (“IDR”) against delivery of USD. The maximum
deliverable outstanding amount to the Group under
these contracts is IDR 112,031 million (equivalent to
Hong Kong dollar of approximately HK$79 million using
the exchange rate as of 31st December, 2008) and a
maximum amount of USD 11,850,000 to be delivered
out by the Group. It is deliverable in instalments up to
September 2009. For details, please refer to Note 26(a).

BEZEALH AEBEERBE
R ETWEENERE (T
El) - AEBBREZSEAHA
BEhmEaizN&RZeEA
112,031,000,000E0 fB & (A =
ZEENEFE+-_A=+—BZE
RETE - FHE R #I79,000,000/%8
T0) A RBEAEERIZTZ
5% &% /511,850,000 7T o

HRXNEE_TTNFNAF
B2 M 5E26(a) °
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B ISR R M RE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

108 Carry Wealth Holdings Limited

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Note (b)

The outflow represents the nominal amount the Group
has to pay for buying one of the three listed securities
linked to this instrument upon the maturity date of the
contract. For details please refer to Note 26(b).

In addition, the Group paid HK$87,186,000 during the
year ended 31st December, 2008 to acquire specific
units of certain listed securities according to pre-
determined prices upon the maturity of all the equity
accumulators entered into in 2007.

The Group meets its day to day working capital
requirements through facilities obtained from banks. It
has to comply with financial covenant requirements set
by one of the major banks and is required to maintain
(i) consolidated net tangible worth of the Group to be
not less than HK$240 million; and (i) consolidated net
bank debt to consolidated net tangible worth to be
not higher than 0.5. Net tangible worth is defined as
the capital and reserves attributable to the Company’s
equity holders and net bank debt is defined as the total
bank borrowings of the Group less its cash and cash
equivalents.

The directors consider that with the ongoing support
from its bankers and major customers, the Group should
be able to generate sufficient cash flows from future
operations to cover its operating costs and should be
able to meet its financing obligations.

The ongoing global financial crisis has also resulted in
a very high volatility in stock and currency markets. The
fair values of the various financial instruments held by
the Group at balance sheet date could suffer further
mark-to-market loss if there are further declines in the
stock market values or if there is further depreciation of
certain foreign currencies against United States Dollar. In
addition, the Group’s investment in foreign operations is
exposed to foreign currency translation risks, especially
the subsidiaries in Indonesia. Further mark-to-market
losses from financial instruments or further currency
translation losses from investment in foreign operations
would lower the net tangible worth of the Group; and
thus the Group’s ability to fulfil its financing obligations as
they fall due.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MERRER (&)

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

31 MERBEER (&)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
Note (b) (Continued)

The ongoing global financial crisis has impacted the
Group’s markets around the world which may impact the
Group’s revenues, trading results and cash flows in the
future. The debtors of the Group may be affected by the
current economic conditions which could in turn impact
their ability to repay the amounts owed.

The directors are closely monitoring the Group’s trading
and cash flow position and have instituted measures to
preserve cash. Based on the directors’ assessments of
the reasonably possible changes in trading performance,
the Group will institute additional measures as
appropriate to preserve cash and enable it to meet its
financial obligations as they fall due. These measures
could include disposing of the listed equity securities held
by the Group, introducing additional cost control and
reduction measures; and streamlining and adjusting the
production scale in response to market conditions and
needs.

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt. Except for the compliance of certain
bank covenant requirements for maintaining the
Group’s banking facilities, the Group is not subject
to any externally imposed capital requirements.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as
total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.
Total capital is “Capital and reserves attributable
to the Company’s equity holders” as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet.

BEEERERLQA

(c) hBEZER (&)
Y5 (o) ()

EHERMEREE FEAEE
R R BRI TS WA e &
AEBEMARNKE HEHEER
BaR AEEMEBAAER
ERRERRYERMYEHLE
BRFREBE

EFTNERAEENE S R
BEMAR  WRZIEERITIR
L REEFRFHEZIRATE
HIEMAEEE AEEBRIN
LB JE R B AR R IR B 30 50 Al
EEFIHRREITET %5H
EEENEREEFEN LMWK
RFEZ 5l ABIMNKATE B b
KE RGN AR kAR
EREARETAREE-

3.2 BemREER

AEENEZ EEBR =K
FRBERREELE UAKRR
REDBNSEMESTAA
REND AKESRENE
REBABIEEZHA

RTHBIABERAER K
SEA B FRERM
BREHE MERRDIKNER
BB BITHRIEEEEN
BT o R BT E T|RITH
RITRORE AR RITRE
S 7N 5 (8 48 78 38 <7 AE AT S P
T INEY B AR E ©

AEBEREAABLRNESE
ERER-ZLXDRAEF
BRAREARFTE - BEFH
DIRBREFRRELREEE
HAFE -BERABNERE
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B IEER R M RE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.2

3.3

110 Carry Wealth Holdings Limited

Capital risk management (Continued)

The gearing ratios at 31st December, 2008 and
2007 were as follows:

3 MEERRER (&)

3.2

BEEEER (&)
RZEBEENEFER_EEZTLF
+-—A=+—HWELXEELL
=S

2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAET
Total borrowings BmER 147,594 106,078
Less: Cash and cash B REMIREEFEMBEIEE
equivalents (63,508) (109,952)
84,086 (3,874)
Capital and reserves BARAIEERFFEA
attributable to the [ElG 2 ER KR
Company’s equity holders 253,107 325,711
Gearing ratio EXRBELE 33.2% (1.2%)
Fair value estimation 3.3 LNREZMEE

The fair value of financial assets traded in active
markets such as publicly traded securities is based
on quoted market prices at balance sheet date.
The quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the Group is the current bid price.

The fair values of the financial assets and
derivative financial instruments not traded in an
active market are determined by counterparty
financial institutions using a variety of valuation
methodologies, models and assumptions mainly
based on market conditions existing at each
balance sheet date.

The carrying value less impairment provision of
trade receivables and payables are a reasonable
approximation of their fair values. The fair value
of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future contractual
cash flows at the current market interest rate
that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Fair value of financial assets and derivative
financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets that are traded
in an active market is determined by the quoted
market prices.

For the fair values of financial assets and derivative
financial instruments not traded in an active
market, the Group would use market values
determined by counterparty financial institutions
to estimate the fair values. The methodologies,
models, assumptions used in valuing these
financial assets and derivative financial instruments
require judgement by management which are
mainly based on market conditions existing at
each balance sheet date.

(b) Income taxes and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in a number
of jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for income taxes. The
Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.
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B IEER R M RE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

112 Carry Wealth Holdings Limited

Income taxes and deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as the
management of the Group considers it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against
which temporary differences or tax losses can be
utilised. Where the expectations are different from
the original estimates, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred tax assets in the period
in which such estimates have been changed.

Estimated write-down of inventories to net
realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to net
realisable value based on an assessment of
the realisability of inventories. Write-down on
inventories are recorded where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be realised. The identification of write-down
requires the use of judgment and estimates. Where
the expectations are different from the original
estimates, such differences will impact the carrying
value of inventories in the period in which such
estimates have been changed.

Estimated impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of
receivables based on an assessment of the
recoverability of the receivables. Provisions are
applied to receivables where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be collectible. The identification of impairment
of receivables requires the use of judgment and
estimate. Where the expectations are different
from the original estimates, such difference
will impact the carrying value of receivables in
the period in which such estimates have been
changed.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Useful lives, residual values and depreciation
of property, plant and equipment

The management of the Group determines the
estimated useful lives, residual values and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. The management of the Group will
increase the depreciation charge where useful
lives are less than previously estimated lives, it
will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned
or sold. Actual economic lives may differ from
estimated useful lives; actual residual values may
differ from estimated residual values. Periodic
review could result in a change in depreciable lives
and residual values and therefore depreciation
expense in the future period.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment, leasehold land and land use rights

The Group assess annually whether property, plant
and equipment, leasehold land and land use rights
have any indication of impairment. The recoverable
amounts have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations or market valuations. These
calculations require the use of judgment and
estimates.

Buildings carried at valuation

Buildings, comprises mainly of factories and
offices, are shown at fair value and is determined
by directors based on valuations performed by
external independent valuers on an annual basis.
In arriving at the valuation, significant judgement,
assumptions and economic estimates have to be
made.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group reviews annually whether goodwill
has suffered any impairment in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in Note 2.8. The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations.
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5 REVENUES AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in garment
manufacturing and trading. Revenues recognised
during the year are as follows:

Wk s EBEH

AEBTERERKBERES-
RERBER 2RI T

2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHE T FET
Turnover -

Sale of garment products 3 65 X X EE mh 879,055 1,055,153

Other income E b g A
Rental income e A 1,059 1,708
880,114 1,056,861

The Group’s turnover solely arises from garment
manufacturing and trading. The Group’s customers
are located in five main geographical areas namely
United States of America, Europe, Canada, Southeast
Asia and other countries, while, the Group’s business
activities are conducted predominantly in Hong Kong,
Indonesia, Lesotho, El Salvador and Mainland China.
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B HE R B AE

REVENUES AND SEGMENT 5 IRsR7EEHE (&)
INFORMATION (Continued)
An analysis of the Group’s turnover and contribution to REBRFRZME D EBE D&
operating profit for the year by geographical segment is XERKEBENERDTT
as follows:
Primary reporting format - geographical segments FEREREX-BR-SEEIN\FEER
by location of customers for 2008 HWESHE S
United
States of Southeast Other
America Europe Canada Asia Countries Group
ESE M mEx REE HittEx N
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FER FTER FTER FER TER FET
Turnover B 778,572 27,613 25,540 38,808 8,522 879,055
Segment results DEELE 77,607 3,456 2,775 (2,753) 723 81,808
Unallocated rental income Taen Bz EEBRA 1,059
Unallocated administrative TEIBZITHAZ
expenses (117,476)
Operating loss LB (34,609)
Finance income BEWA 4,076
Finance costs A& A (5,566)
Share of loss of associates SEEE ARBE (1,402)
Loss before income tax BRETEH AR (37,501)
Income tax expense Fri5m MY (4,533)
Loss for the year FEEE (42,034)
Segment assets DEHEE 118,780 8,444 3,550 8,938 607 140,319
Unallocated assets TEABIAE 438,778
Total assets BwEE 579,097
Unallocated liabilities TN EAE 318,197
Capital expenditure EAXARX 15,326
Depreciation of properties, M- BE Rk
plant and equipment HiETE 20,501
Amortisation of leasehold land & £t [ + 3t
and land use rights FREBH 286
BEERRERQE 2008 FEIHRE 115
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5

REVENUES AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Continued)

B ISR R M RE

5 BRRkSBEH (&)

Primary reporting format - geographical segments FEREFRLX-B-ZEZLFER
by location of customers for 2007 WESIE S
United
States of Southeast Other
America Europe Canada Asia Countries Group
=8 B mex R HBER rERE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAEL FAET AL FAET FAET FAET
Turnover B¥ER 955,637 26,000 41,675 19,315 12,526 1,055,153
Segment results DEEE 126,081 1,462 6,206 2,181 528 136,458
Unallocated rental income TP HSRA 1,708
Unallocated administrative TEABZTHAX
expenses (58,689)
Operating profit EHF 79,477
Finance income AE WA 6,730
Finance costs AR AR (6,637)
Share of profit of associates 43158 & 72 7)) Fl 1,738
Profit before income tax B P15 B A0 % R 81,308
Income tax expense R (27,228)
Profit for the year FEHF 54,080
Segment assets DBEE 91,097 3,585 3,225 8,878 1,245 108,030
Unallocated assets THNBEE 495,976
Total assets BEE 604,006
Unallocated liabilities Teen# Ak 270,048
Capital expenditure EARAX 70,293
Depreciation of properties, ME HER
plant and equipment HEWE 17,414
Amortisation of leasehold land & £ &% £t
and land use rights B AR 2 H 766
Unallocated administrative expenses represent  Teen#E 2 THBE S ECERY  BFEE
corporate expenses, including other losses. &8 -

116 Carry Wealth Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2008



Notes to the Financial Statements Bt Rz KT

REVENUES AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Continued)

Primary reporting format — geographical segments
by location of assets

5 B@kHBEH (&)

FRBERA-BREEMESBHS

Capital
Total assets expenditure
WEE EXRBX
2008 2008
—EENF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Hong Kong BB 200,851 2,808
Indonesia E1JE 170,423 3,622
Lesotho KR 20,954 76
El Salvador T& R FL % 2,800 -
Mainland China ETN 3 184,069 8,820
579,097 15,326
Capital
Total assets expenditure
mEE BEARRX
2007 2007
—ETEF —EELF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
AT FET
Hong Kong A 236,063 4,965
Indonesia HE 165,583 658
Lesotho KRR 23,994 1,279
El Salvador & R L% 21,414 78
Mainland China SN 155,852 63,313
602,906 70,293
Unallocated assets TR EE 1,100 -
604,006 70,293
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B ISR R M RE

6 OTHER LOSSES - NET RSl - 28
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAET
Fair value gains on investment wEMEZ A ERE
properties - 6,000
Gain on disposal of investment HEREYE 2 W=
properties 7,300 -
Fair value gains realised on HENHEESHEER
disposal of available-for-sale W A/N R &
financial assets - 392
Net fair value (losses)/gains on MTEERITAEZ AR FE
derivative financial instruments: (E18) Wz
Leveraged foreign forward BERNEINEES LD
exchange contracts (19,560) 130
Equity accumulators EmRETA
- not yet matured — 1) A< 2 BA - (11,525)
- matured 225 (16,389) -
Market linked instrument with ETﬁT$ HAZe BE 2
swap arrangement MmizE eI T A (3,659) (1,092)
,,,,,, (39,608) | (12,487)
Net fair value (losses)/gains on BARBEFAEBZ
financial assets at fair value TREELR At /%*TE
through profit or loss: (BB )/HSZ
Listed equity securities EmRARE (12,777) 5,409
Foreign currency linked ERHNEEH 8
structured note EEMERE (710) 1,020
Market linked instrument with EVEBEEZ
initial investments MiSEIMT A
- not yet matured — 8 & £ B (3,357) (2,993)
- matured — B2 35 (1,551) -
,,,,,, (18,395 | 3,436
Loss on disposal of listed equity HE ETRAESR 2EE
securites (7,498) . -
Total other losses — net HihEE— 558 (58,201) (2,659)
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EXPENSES BY NATURE

Notes to the Financial Statements

Operating (loss)/profit is stated after crediting and

charging the following:

B R ERAR MR

BREEIBZAX
g (BB CENERARTBRT

(IR

2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Raw materials used Rz R 457,935 486,840
Changes in inventories of finished — FAk dn & ¥ &K G HY
goods and work in progress FE% (20,379) 39,741
Quota charges fid B8 5 2 157 103
Depreciation of properties, plant ME- WEREEBETE
and equipment 20,501 17,414
Impairment of properties, plant Y% B MEERE
and equipment 2,220 8,261
Gain on disposal of properties, HEME - -HEK
plant and equipment Btz W (24) (1,576)
Amortisation of leasehold land and T & £ b &k +- b fsf A4 2
land use right BB 286 766
Employee benefit expense EERAMAX
(excluding directors’ (T"EREESHE)
emoluments) (Note 14) (Mf5E14) 199,055 242,986
Operating lease rentals — land and &&HEH S
buildings — T REF 9,106 10,658
Auditors’ remuneration 2% 85 6 BN & 2,448 2,034
Net exchange losses M EEFEE 169 395
Goodwill impairment EESNERE 1,100 -
Others HAh 183,948 167,103
Total cost of sales, HERA  HERX K
selling expenses and 1T > 42 %8
administrative expenses 856,522 974,725
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8 FINANCE INCOME 8 HMBEIA
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FHExT FET
Finance income on short-term MERITER 2B E WA
bank deposits 1,885 5,398
Finance income from market MZEBT A2 mE KA
linked instruments 471 1,332
Dividend income on listed equity FRRAE S 2 R B A
securities 1,720 -
4,076 6,730
9 FINANCE COSTS 9 MERE

Finance costs represent interest expenses paid for bank
borrowings which are wholly repayable within five years.

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% (2007: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable
profit for the year. Income tax on overseas profits has
been calculated on the estimated assessable profit
for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated
income statement represents:

MEXNNERERNDFAZEEER
ZIRITERZINZMERAX -

FrisiRBAX

HBNSH T RIR F N 5T R
A I ER16.56% (—Z ST F:
17.5% ) st B4 - BINGE N Z P
M IRIE F NG ERTUR A - 12
REBREXBAEBR 2IRITH
MEHKal ABmKZMETHEHE
=2

2008 2007
—EENEF —EELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current income tax B HIRTEH

- Hong Kong profits tax —BABNEM 7,170 16,846
- Overseas income tax —BINFTIE R - 6,297

(Over)/Under-provision in prior NAFE (BRERE),/
years BETE (42) 268
Deferred income tax (Note 29) BRI (B 5E29) (2,595) 3,817
Income tax expense FT 5% 5 X2 4,533 27,228
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10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10 FRiSMBAZ (&)

The tax on the Group’s (loss)/profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise

AEEBRBA (BE), 8 M HE
HERABEMREMAE I EmE R
FIZ R

using the taxation rate of Hong Kong is as follows:

2008 2007
—E2ENEF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETSH A (B8), & F (37,501) 81,308
Tax calculated at domestic tax rate IZFTEBIR 2 @A X
applicable to losses/profits TECZEE Rz
in the respective countries 18 (5,068) 12,135
Income not subject to tax BARD 2 WA (4,951) (3,560)
Expenses not deductible for tax PRI 2 5 2 4,077 4,507
Unrecognised deferred tax assets  RIERIEEREE E 10,766 11,469
Utilisation of previously AN R AER 2B
unrecognized tax losses &8 (433) (2,580)
PRC income tax exempted in BEFECHRRZRBEF
previous years 1315 - 3,262
(Over)/Under provision in prior NAFE (BREEE)
years BETR (42) 268
Remeasurement of deferred tax BT ERLERIE
— change in tax rate — T R i 184 -
Others HAb - 1,727
Income tax expense PSR 4,533 27,228

R-ZFTEF EFRERR K

In 2007, Dongguan Guoxing Garment Limited
(“Guoxing”), a subsidiary engaged in sample making,
was closed and the sample making processes
are moved to another factory located in Heshan,
Guangdong Province. Pursuant to the relevant laws and
regulations in Mainland China, Guoxing is entitled to
an exemption from the PRC enterprises income tax for
the two years commencing from its first profit-making
year and thereafter, it is entitled to 50% relief from
the PRC enterprise income tax for the following three
years. However, since Guoxing has operated for less
than ten years, it is required to pay the PRC enterprise
income tax exempted for the prior years amounting to
approximately HK$3,262,000 when it is closed.

BEEEZRERLQA

BRaRBHEIXER AT ([E
B)EMEA MEEERIFE
ERIS-—HUREREGILTZ
WE -REBEFBRNEZHEBEEZR
ERCBREREEEKENFEERE
BEMTFERPBIFBEDLEMSE
HoMmBER=ZF LR FHEHER
EPIm%Fﬁ SH o AT - R B
BORTF HEAREBRARAR
BEFECERRZFBECEMSG
3 43,262,000 It ©
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10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10

During the year, as a result of the change in the Hong
Kong corporation tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5% that
is effective from 1st April, 2008, deferred tax balances
have been remeasured. Deferred tax expected to
reverse in the year to 31st December, 2009 has been
measured using the effective rate that applies in Hong
Kong.

In Indonesia, the new Income Tax Law 36/2008 will
be effective on 1st January, 2009. Under this new
income tax law, the progressive corporate tax rates
are changed to a single tax rate of 28% in 2009 and
will be further reduced to 25% from 2010 onwards. As
a result of such change, deferred tax balances have
been remeasured. Deferred tax expected to reverse
in subsequent years has been measured using the
appropriate tax rate.

11 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 11
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
is dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
to the extent of profit of approximately HK$28,196,000
(2007: HK$24,000,000).

12 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 12

() Basic

Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by
dividing the (loss)/profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

FRrSMBA (#])

FRN BAREAEACERELR_ZTZ
NENA—HEBI7.5%NBE
16.5% + A bt E 1) IR E 5 B 4 %%E
HREE—_ZEZNF+_A=1+—
AIEFERL ZEERBSRER
BEAERCERBEGTHE -

FENJE - #1 AT 15 #17£36,,2008#% B
—TETNE-F—BRELAR-RE
utlﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ’aﬁ)i ELEHR KRR
_77j1¢£u A28% Ml —
—TFEMBE—FH R E25% °
EM%E”@ BEREBIBERE T
ERIK TEHH#E@EW%‘@Z%E@
HMEERBEREEFE

FOFZRBHBAEG T

:U\zti AIMB®RRZ AR A
BEaBHBEABGRANN AR F
28,196,000 L (2 ZT + F:
24,000,000/ 7t ) °

Sk (&K8) 87
(i) #FX

BREAR (BR) BN TRE
ARefgas 8 ARG (BER)
SRMBRAFANBE BITEBR
ZNEF BT E

2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THERT FH&ET
(Loss)/profit attributable NARERZFFAA
to equity holders of the FEfL (B58) @ Al
Company (40,681) 48,950
Weighted average number BETERRZ
of ordinary shares in issue mEFHE (Fik)
(thousands) 370,712 365,245
Basic (loss)/earnings per share & ERN (EE)
(HK cents per share) X (FIBA) (10.97) 13.40
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12 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
(Continued)

(ii)

Diluted

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by
adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding to assume conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company
has one category of dilutive potential ordinary
shares that is share options. For the share options,
a calculation is done to determine the number of
shares that could have been acquired at fair value
(determined as the average annual market share
price of the Company’s shares) based on the
monetary value of the subscription rights attached
to outstanding share options. The number of
shares calculated as above is compared with the
number of shares that would have been issued
assuming the exercise of the share options.

B R ERAR MR

12 S5 (BR) 2% (#)

(ii)

B

Fh#s (BER) BNZE
REMEEELEEEEBRD
BRAOBRTN EHBEEBK
MEFYHFFE - ANRAH—
BEEEEEE AR B
B-HRNERE NQARER
R ARITERBBETI < BB
BEEFE UEEEAAE
(RARBBN 2 FHFED
S RUE M E ) M A A Z B
AR EFEMRBZBRNH
B ERRZEBRIEETE
BRSBETZIRMOBE LR

2008 2007
—E2ENEF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FET
(Loss)/profit attributable RARERFEA
to equity holders of the FEL (E518) i F
Company (40,681) 48,950
Weighted average number BEETEBERZ
of ordinary shares in issue mEFSE (F&)
(thousands) 370,712 365,245
Adjustments for share options RERRE 2 B (FRR)
(thousands) - 4,710
Weighted average number of SREE (BB)
ordinary shares for diluted BN 2 B Rk
(loss)/earnings per share FHE(FR)
(thousands) 370,712 369,955
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share &% #E (EE)
(HK cents per share) &M (FREA) (10.97) 13.23
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B ISR R M RE

13 DIVIDENDS 13 BR2
2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FET
Interim dividend paid of 2.0 IR R ERRR B IR T m AR
HK cents (2007: 3.0 HK cents) 2081 ( ZFEZ+%F:
per ordinary share 3.0%1) 7,437 11,009
Proposed final dividend of nil RN REIR E SR E B
HK cents (2007: 5.0 HK cents) AW (ZEETLF:
per ordinary share 5.07%1l) - 18,398
7,437 29,407

14 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 14 EERFBAXZ (FEEEEM

(EXCLUDING DIRECTORS’ &)
EMOLUMENTS)

2008 2007

—EENEF —EELF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHE T FET

Wages and salaries Fe ke 187,481 224,406

Termination benefits R IEmE 7,138 12,180

Pension costs RIKE KA 4,436 6,400

199,055 242,986

Forfeited contributions totaling HK$82,000 (2007:

FREHA 22 RKRERA K

HK$149,000) were utilised during the year. There is no
remaining balance available at the year end to reduce
future contributions (2007: HK$62,000).

There is no contribution payable at the year end (2007:
Nil).

The Group operates/participates the following pension
and post retirement plans:

()  The Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) for employees in Hong Kong, under
which the Group and its employee each makes
monthly contribution to the scheme at 5% of the
qualifying earnings of the employee, subject to a
monthly cap of HK$1,000.
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82,0008 7t ( —Z T+ 4 : 149,000
BL) RERYTEHRTEH (=T
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AEBET B2 EATRIKERK
CHEE
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14 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE
(EXCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(i

(i)

The Group’s Indonesia subsidiaries do not
operate any pension plan in Indonesia. However,
according to the labor law in Indonesia, the
employer is required to pay retirement benefits
to the employees upon their retirement and
the retirement benefits are calculated based
on the final monthly basic salary and the years
of service. The latest actuarial valuation of the
plan was performed by a professionally qualified
independent actuarial firm, as at 31st December,
2008, using the “projected unit credit” method.

The Group’s branch in Lesotho do not operate any
pension plan in Lesotho. However, according to
the labor law in Lesotho, the employer is required
to pay retirement benefits to the employees
when employment is terminated by the employer
before the normal retirement date, or whenever
an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits.

The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China
contribute approximately 11% of the basic salary
of their employees to retirement schemes operated
by municipal governments. Other than the
mandatory contributions, the Group has no further
obligations for the actual pension payments or any
post retirement benefits. The retirement schemes
are responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to retired employees.

The Group’s subsidiary in El Salvador operates
defined contribution plan, under which the
Group’s subsidiary and employees contribute to
a pensions fund administered by a specialised
institution authorised by the Government of El
Salvador, which according to the Saving System
for Pensions Law, is responsible for the pension’s
payment and other benefits to employees.

B R ERAR MR

14 BREFAZ (FEEEFMH

&) (#§)

(i

(i)

BEEERERLQA

AEE 2 M B~ m I E R
EEEmEKREF S A
RIBEE S TA BXTAR
B B RIKE S E B TR KR
A R ARRE A TSR R &R &
RAFERGFHAE- R =
ZEENFE+ZA=+—RH &
HZRFBEAENAEES
BRBUBERARMNA AR
AAEMERE] #TTe

REBRRKRIEZ D R AL E
REMETEMERKREFTS -
Am RBEREFESTE BE
AR T ERAES SRR
BH:ERERN —MEREH
FiEERE —BEERE
X BRERAEZF RN -

AEBMARFEKEZHER
B A BT RR S 2 R EIE
H2HABREEERNF SN
11% ° % 98 I Mt FRoh - R &=
E I E A E G RK S SRR
BBz AEE -ZBRIKTEIA
E2HEMNTEKEER ZEINK
A o

AEBEREBLSZ ZHB AR
BETERHESGE B A%
Bz M8 AR M B R —
ERLZBNREEERE
BEEREESHET RIE
BREHEERGE ZHBA
BERKRE 2R KA EERHE
HAdma A
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15 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE - 15 ERBIIAX-EETREHRE
DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR BEARZEHE
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EFEE<

The remuneration of every Director for the year HE_ZZENF+_A=+—
ended 31st December, 2008 is set out below: AEtFERESZMedHW
T
Employer’s
contribution
Discretionary Other  to the MPF
Name of Director Fees Salary bonuses Benefits scheme Total
BEeE
E3pg e 230 mERA HitEF BEHR @it

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TR TR TiEx TiEx TiEx

Mr Rusli Hendrawan Rusli Hendrawan’t 4 100 2,854 - 86 112 3,152
Mr Lee Sheng Kuang, James ~ Zt L4 100 2,134 - 2,315 95 4,644
Mr Oey Tjie Ho BEAEE 100 797 - 5 41 943
Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie HERLAE 100 1,395 - 32 69 1,596
Mr Cheung Kwok Ming REIRR 4 162 - - - - 162
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry S E% 4 192 - - - - 192
Mr Lau Siu Ki, Kevin AEEEE 192 - - - - 192
The remuneration of every Director for the year BHE-_ZTLF+-_A=+—
ended 31st December, 2007 is set out below: HIEFESES 2ME5E WM
T

Employer’s

contribution

Discretionary Other  to the MPF
Name of Director Fees Salary bonuses Benefits scheme Total

wiELEE
B4 e M R HihigH EEHR @it

HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TET TEL TET TEL T

Mr Rusli Hendrawan Rusli Hendrawan’t 4 100 2,968 1,295 86 112 4,561
Mr Lee Sheng Kuang, James ~ Z# X %4 100 2,134 1,295 2,316 95 5,940
Mr Oey Tjie Ho EEMEL 100 797 280 20 4 1,238
Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie HERLAE 100 1,395 630 30 69 2,224
Mr Cheung Kwok Ming o B8R 5T A 150 - - - - 150
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry — S#E L4 180 - - - - 180
Mr Lau Siu Ki, Kevin BBELE 180 - - - - 180
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15 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE -

Notes to the Financial Statements

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Other benefits include leave pay, share option and
housing allowances.

During the year, no director has waived any of their
emoluments (2007: Nil).

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group include three (2007: three)
directors whose emoluments are reflected in
the analysis presented above. The emoluments

SRR

15 ERBHAX-EERERE

BARZzHM& (#&)

(a) EFEME (&)

H@ENermamnk Bk
KMEREERM-

RERN BEEERRFSTZ
THMe (—TTLF &) -

(b) EBEEFHAL

AEEZzhEE=RTHALTE
BR=2(ZTtF: =%)&
FREFZLMEERN EXZT
Z AN RER - FREMN T &

payable to the remaining two (2007: two) TRAE(ZEZEEF - MEB) A
individuals during the year are as follows: TeMEmT:
2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Basic salaries, housing AR FEE=ER-
allowances, other allowances H 2R R B 5
and benefits-in-kind 2,288 3,353
Contributions to the MPF BIBESETEIMHR
scheme 106 84
2,394 3,437
The emoluments fell within the following bands: & & E T

Number of individuals

AE
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
Emolument bands B <& &0 [E
HK$1,000,000 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,000/ T —
1,500,000/% 7T 2 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/% T —
2,500,000/ JT - 1

]
Tt
13
==
XA
at
s
I

A 2008 FERE 127
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16 GOODWILL 16 &
2008 2007
—EEN\EF —EEEF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET FAET
At 1st January w—A—H 1,100 1,100
Impairment (Note 7) BAE (FiEE7) (1,100) -
At 31st December R+=—A=+—H - 1,100

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating
units (“CGUs”) identified according to the country
of operation and it is allocated to the manufacturing
operation in El Salvador.

A goodwill impairment charge of HK$1,100,000 was
recognised during the year. The impairment charge
resulted from the closure of the plant in El Salvador in
late 2008.

In 2007, the recoverable amount of this CGU was
determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations used pre-tax cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period.

Key assumptions used in 2007 for value-in-use
calculation are as follows:

BENREEMEBRDEEAN
SERcELBEN([REELE
f]) EmoEEERRSZ 2 HE
Ey/

FHESHEE A1,100,000/8 L5 R F
NER REERRKEERRLZ K
ER_EZENFRKEE -

R-FTLE ARSELEMK
] U B 328 20 B A R L
7o U F B IR R E R B
T BT 57 L 5 B R

AN =i — I e~
SREFTHE -

R-ZZLFMEMFEERET
ES LB UNNE

Manufacturing

£ E

%

Bt

Gross profit margin E R X 21
Growth rate R = 3
Pre-tax discount rate & B BT HT 0 X 7
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17 PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

B HE R B AE

17 ME -BERER

Group
s3]
Buildings
| £
Furniture,
Plant office
Held in Leasehold  equipment  equipment
Mainland Held in Held in improve- and  and motor Construction
China  Indonesia Lesotho ments  machinery vehicles i progress Total
&
R E AR RO REER BERE HWOZRB
55 BR BE  HEER REE RAE  HEBIE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T THR T FEL T FEL T
Year ended 31st December, HE-EINF
2008 +ZA=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount BOREFE 34,740 25,331 6,572 20,849 40,288 24,361 - 152,141
Additions NE 298 - - 3,513 7,880 3,635 - 15,326
Disposals e - (78) - (67) (2,806) (42) - (2,993)
Depreciation il (1,707) (2,312 (522) (1,961) (6,801) (7,198) - (20,501)
Impairment HE - - - (343) (1,689) (188) - (2,220)
Revaluation surplus MBS - 1,213 - - - - - 1,213
Exchange differences EREH 2,456 (1,226) - 1,423 (1,671) 1,195 - 2,177
Closing net book amount BARREHE 35,787 22,928 6,050 23,414 35,201 21,763 - 145,143
At 31st December, 2008 RZBENE
+ZA=t-H
Cost or valuation WA ME 35,787 22,928 6,050 27,643 59,745 51,484 - 203,637
Accumulated depreciation 2iHE - - - (4,229) (24,544) (29,721) - (58,494)
Net book amount BEFE 35,787 22,928 6,050 23,414 35,201 21,763 - 145,143
Year ended 31st December, 2007  BE-ZE+E
TZAZT-HIEE
Opening net book amount HNEEFE - 28,158 7,126 1,888 47 555 8,616 14,983 108,326
Additions AE - - - 19,627 12,136 19,642 18,888 70,298
Transfer &y 33,871 - - - - - (33,871) -
Disposals hE - - - (86) (1,973) (495) - (2,554)
Depreciation g (510) 2,112) (554) (1,383) (8,221) (4,634) - (17,414)
Impairment FifE - - - - (8,261) - - (8,261)
Revaluation surplus BERH - 511 - - - - - 511
Exchange differences EHES 1,379 (1,226) - 803 (948) 1,232 - 1,240
Closing net book amount HRREFE 34,740 25,331 6,572 20,849 40,288 24,361 - 152,141
At 31st December, 2007 RZETLF
+ZA=1-H
Cost or valuation RAZ M (E 34,740 25,331 6,572 25,081 69,307 46,808 - 207,839
Accumulated depreciation RETE - - - (4,232) (29,019) (22,447) - (55,698)
Net book amount REFE 34,740 25,331 6,572 20,849 40,288 24,361 - 152,141
EEZRERAT 2008 FE®RE
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17 PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

The Group’s buildings were revalued at 31st December,
2008. Valuations were made on the open market value
or depreciated replacement cost basis, or on the basis
of the net present value of all projected net income
generated from the buildings. The valuations were
carried out by:

()  Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited, an
independent qualified surveyor for the building held
in Mainland Ching;

(i)  PT VPC Hagai Sejahtera, an independent qualified
surveyor for the buildings held in Indonesia; and

(i) Japie Van Blerk, an independent qualified surveyor
for the building held in Lesotho.

The revaluation surplus net of applicable deferred
income taxes was credited to fixed assets revaluation
reserve in shareholders’ equity.

Depreciation of approximately HK$8,225,000 (2007:
HK$10,081,000) has been expensed to cost of
goods sold, approximately HK$1,750,000 (2007:
HK$537,000) has been expensed to selling expenses;
and HK$10,526,000 (2007: HK$6,796,000) has been
expensed to administrative expenses.

If buildings were stated on the historical cost basis, the
amounts would be as follows:

17 VX -BERRE ()

AEERBFER_ZEZENF+A
—t+t—HEHRBRE-HEDLRER
MG EESITERBRAEE
SHRZFEFTEE A EGTEA
FRBBREFBEL EEHR T
BHETT

() BIARERMEEEBHEE
AHEEEARAR (AR E
RERE 2EFETHE)

iy BYAEERANEEMPT VPC
Hagai Sejahtera (BREE
BZEFHETHE) K

(i) & A & OB £ BhJapie Van
Blerk ( BRHERIEF B 2EF
HEITIHE) °

BHEEHMERERELEMRSH I
ABREDRT ZEEEEE MG M
e

WEEDAIREEERKAF
5 #98,225,0008 T (ZEZF+F:
10,081,000 7t) R EMRA X X
§5 491,750,000 7L (2 FT L F
537,000/8 70 ) R 1TEF X X 88
#910,526,0008 L (T T F :
6,796,000/ 7T ) °

MRS TR £ R A K55
m

2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FETT

Cost D@ 223,245 161,071
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTE (162,774) (98,043)
Net book amount BREFE 60,471 63,028
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17 PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31st December,
2008 of the above assets is as follows:

17 IR -BER&RE (])

EitEER =

=

T NE+=A

— = =

=t BZRARGESTOT

Buildings
- &2

Furniture,

Plant office

Held in Leasehold  equipment  equipment

Mainland Held in Held in improve- and  and motor Construction

China Indonesia Lesotho ments  machinery vehicles  in progress Total

R B KK RAE RR&ER BERE HH-BLEZ
BE B8 BE BE#E REE RERAE ERIE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER THERT TER TER
At cost BRAE - - - 27,643 59,745 51,484 - 138,872
At 2008 valuation RZEENFHE 35,787 22,928 6,050 - - - - 64,765
35,787 22,928 6,050 27,643 59,745 51,484 - 203,637

The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31st December,
2007 of the above assets is as follows:

R BER _ZEE+E+ A
=t —BZRASIHEBS AT

Buildings
BF

Furniture,

Plant office

Held in Leasehold equipment equipment

Mainland Held in Held in improve- and and motor ~ Construction

China Indonesia Lesotho ments machinery vehicles  in progress Total

R EARE REVE RRER BREE KHHLE
5 5B BB BERE Rr#E  RERAE ERIR @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TAL TR TR TAL TR TAL
At cost BEKA - - - 25,081 69,307 46,808 - 141,196
At 2007 valuation RZBTHER(E 34,740 25,331 6,572 - - - - 66,643
34,740 25,331 6,572 25,081 69,307 46,808 - 207,839
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B ISR R M RE

17 PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

17 IR -WER&Mm (&)

Net book value of buildings is analysed as follows: BFZEREEFEINTOT
2008 2007
—BENF - TTHA
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Outside Hong Kong, held on: REBAINEE
— Leases of between —HHOFHNT
10 to 50 years 102504 56,540 60,071
— Leases of less than 10 years —MHHFHILR10F 8,225 6,572
64,765 66,643
18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18 HEME
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Beginning of the year F 4 28,300 22,300
Fair value gains DB W= - 6,000
Disposals k=4 (28,300) -~
End of the year F K - 28,300

The Group’s interests in the investment properties at

REBRAKEFEINRZIRED

their net book values are analysed as follows: EMREmOTET:
2008 2007
—EENF —ZETELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THEx FH&ET

In Hong Kong, held on: REBRE:
— Leases of between —MHAFEHNF10E

10 to 50 years 50%F - 28,300
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B R ERAR MR

19 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE 10 HETHR TR E
RIGHTS
The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use AEEREEL AR THFERAEZ
rights represent prepaid operating lease payments and RafREMKEHENRE AR
their net book values are analysed as follows: HFEFESMBOT :
2008 2007
—EENF ZTTLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FAT
In Mainland China held on: RARKERES :
— Leases of between —MHAOFHN F10E
10 to 50 years 504 11,859 11,077
In Indonesia held on: REIEFRA
— Leases of between —HAOFHNF102
10 to 50 years 504 650 1,469
— Leases of less than 10 years —MHAFH R0 533 -
13,042 12,546
2008 2007
—BENE S TTH
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Beginning of the year F 1) 12,546 2,235
Additions NE - 11,077
Exchange difference ME 5, Z 5 782 -
Amortisation of prepaid BIHANGEMERE
operating lease payments (286) (766)
End of the year F R 13,042 12,546
As at 31st December, 2008, the Group has not yet RZZEZNF+ZA=+—H K
obtained the formal land use right relating to the piece & E AR EF A AR B R —
of land located in Mainland China. gt IE= L (e AR o
EEZRERAT 2008 FE®RE
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20 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

20 RIEBLOFRZ/E

Company
¥ NN

2008 2007
SE T VU
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Costs, unlisted shares A - FE BT R 165,938 165,938
Provision for impairment loss BEEBERE (16,696) -
149,242 165,938

Details of principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 35 to

the financial statements.

TEMBRARZHFAERENITB

WA HTEES5 o

21 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES REEAFICHES
2008 2007
—EEN\F ZTTLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FHET
Beginning of the year F 1) 46,154 47,036
Share of (loss)/profit 215 (E58) = (1,402) 1,738
Disposal & - (2,928)
Dividend income iz B WA (2,086) (2,899)
Exchange difference M Z 5 3,285 3,207
End of the year FR 45,951 46,154
Amount due from an associate HRBNCIDNE 3,000 3,000
48,951 49,154

134 Carry Wealth Holdings Limited  Annual Re

port 2008




21

22

Notes to the Financial Statements

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The Group’s interest in its associates, which is unlisted,

B R ERAR MR

21 REIEORZ#ES (&)
AL BB IE T R R 2 A A

is as follows: N
Registered and Country of (Loss)/ % Interest
Name paid up capital incorporation Assets  Liabilities  Revenues profit held
(B8)/  FiseEsz
£ EMREERE EMALER &E 8% g il BAk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TER TER
Fortune Champ Us$150 British Virgin 15,133 17,743 - (1,549) 20
Group Limited Islands
keEEBERAR 150% 7T RBRUFES
LWRBBEZHE US$12,375,000 People’s Republic 123,482 7,056 134,991 (2,730) 40
MRBRRE of China
(ShanDong WeiQiao 12,375,000% 7T mEARAANE
HengFu Textile Limited)
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 22 BAREMARGRZEMNE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS E
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss EBEARBEfF ABRERs2RmEER
include the following: BETY&E:
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FET
Market linked instrument with BYHRE 25 E
initial investments (Note (a)) TH (MsE@)) 2,505 12,507
Foreign currency linked structured — EZSNEEENA 7 MR IE
note (Note (b)) (K3t (o)) 8,604 9,314
Listed equity securities (Note (c)) EHRAZES (MEE(C)) 28,377 107
Derivative financial instrument TEeRmT A
Foreign forward exchange RHMNEE L
contracts - 286
89486 | 22214
Less: non-current portion B IEmENEL D
Foreign currency linked ERHNEE B8 2 KRR 1
structured note (Note (b)) & (M5 D)) (8,604) (9,314)
,,,,,,, (8,604) (9314
Current portion mENEH 30,882 12,900
EEZERBRAT 2008 FEWME 135



Notes to the Financial Statements B % $R 3% M &

22 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

The Group relies on valuations from the counterparty
financial institutions to determine the fair values of
the market linked instrument with initial investments
and the foreign currency linked structured note,
which in turn are based on the pricing model using
the market closing prices of the underlying securities,
the volatilities, correlations, interest rate and foreign
exchange rates at the balance sheet date.

The fair values of all listed equity securities are based

on their current bid prices in an active market.

The above assets are denominated in the following
currencies:

22 BARERFARRRZEME

& (1)

AREBKBIZHFoREE G
BENEERVHAREZMSEHBT
ANMEINERBZ EBEREZR
RE FRHENERREERZ
MHEARE ST E R E - RS F
RREXFERAREE-

T LA E 75 2 R A EH AR
FERNERMB2HRERE

o

PR EENATIEESE:

2008 2007

—EENEF —ETLF

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FET FAET

United States dollar X7 11,109 22,107
Hong Kong dollar BT 28,377 107
End of the year FR 39,486 22,214

Notes:

(@) Market linked instrument with initial investments
This instrument has an initial deposit of approximately
HK$7,800,000 (2007: HK$15,500,000) and receives interest
income. The outstanding contract as at 31st December, 2008
has a two-year contract period and will expire in October 2009.

The interest rate is fixed in the first two months of the contract
period and is then determined and linked to the performance of
a basket of underlying securities listed on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong for the remaining life of the contract. Where one
or more of the underlying listed securities are traded below the
predetermined knock-in price, the Group has to buy the worst
performing security at the predetermined strike price on the
maturity date of the contract, with the maximum acquisition
amount to be the initial deposit paid of approximately
HK$7,800,000 (2007: HK$15,500,000).

This instrument will be terminated automatically if the closing
price of each of the underlying securities is at or above the
autocall price on any specified trading day.
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B & -

(@) ENHREZTHSHHIA
It T B & 4 8 F € 497,800,000 T
(ZZZ+4:15,500,000/% 7t) B Uk
BAE - R_ZENF+_A=+—
A RXFRAHNZEO8AMTE I
RZZETNAF+AER-

ERFERRENBRNERER BETE

RHBTEOFHAIZ —E£TRE S
ARG EMZEAESFRBEER
B o —E R ZEMEM ETEHFER
FEEBEZHNITERE KEBARES
NP HERELAETZ2TFEERBER
REErH#sH MEZEESEHAD
2 & ¥ FE £ 47,800,000 7T (==
T4 15,500,000/ 7T ) °

MR EREER S AGERBESZ
WHEDERERENASELERE:
A T B8 588 IE
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 22 BAREHABBIRZEME

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued) = (#|)

Notes: (Continued) Mt : (4&)

(@) Market linked instrument with initial investments (Continued) (a) BFYHREZTHSHBIA (H)
The Group recognised a fair value loss of HK$3,357,000 HE_ZZNF+_A=+—HB1
in relation to this instrument during the year ended 31st FEN FAEERRALTIAEZ ARE
December, 2008 (2007: HK$2,993,000) (Note 6). &5 183,357,000 L (ZE T+ F:

2,993,000 ) (Kiz6) -

(b)  Foreign currency linked structured note (b) HENEHBMEBUEEE
This relates to a structured note with an initial investment IEBEBTEVRKRE 2 EBEERE
of HK$7,800,000. Its return is linked to a basket of different 7,800,000/ 7T o H 6] 5 81 — &£ 7 N [7]
currencies. The structured note has a maturity of five years, ZEERN - ABEEBEZEHBE AR
and will be matured in November 2010. Upon maturity, the FoWEBR_E—ZF+—AFH-5
Group is guaranteed to receive at least the initial investment of g ANEBBRBRDWEVEEE
HK$7,800,000. 7,800,000/ T °

(c) Listed equity securities () LWERAFES
These equity securities are listed on the Stock Exchange of IE FMRAFESNE BB LM e
Hong Kong.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES 03 MEBLAT R

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, MEBATIARAEEE 28 KR

interest-free and repayable on demand. BREEE o

INVENTORIES 04 BE

2008 2007
—2ENE  -TTif
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FET

Raw materials Rk 45,153 40,692

Work in progress F BIAK oA 52,105 33,711

Finished goods 2IAK ih 14,525 12,540

111,783 86,943

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses BRAEAERY R ACDEERREAZ

and included in cost of goods sold amounted FERA4437,556,000/ T (=&

to approximately HK$437,556,000 (2007: T4 : 526,581,000/ 7T ) °

HK$526,581,000).
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25 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

PSR R M RE

25 RHRHEMERRIT

Group Company
rEE AT
2008 2007 2008 2007
—ER\F -—TTLF ZBR\F -—TTLF
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FET THERT FET
Trade receivables g 5 REWIA 140,319 108,030 - -
Prepayments, deposits BRNRE Rk
and other receivables Hofth W 5K 3B 14,186 30,758 713 1,119
154,505 138,788 713 1,119
The carrying amounts of the trade receivables BRI RIBZREEREARE
approximate their fair values. HE

The majority of the Group’s sales to customers are on
open account basis, with credit terms ranging from
30 to 45 days. The remaining sales are on letter of

AEBABHIEE TR, ZAREY
Wk A RET MEEBANT
B0E45H A NHERBUNEHE

credit at sight to 90 days. The ageing analysis of trade WEEARNTR-BEHERFKIELZ
receivables is as follows: AR DT T -
Group
rEH
2008 2007
—E2ENEF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Within 30 days 30H A 106,766 79,204
31-60 days 31-60H 30,621 27,415
61-90 days 61-90H 1,521 261
Over 90 days B iE90H 1,411 1,150
140,319 108,030

As at 31st December, 2008, the trade receivables from
the Group’s five largest customers accounted for 86%
(2007: 81%) of the total trade receivables. The Group’s
approach to managing credit risk is disclosed in Note 3.
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25 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

Ageing analysis of trade receivables past due but not
impaired is shown below. These relates to a number
of independent customers for whom there is no recent
history of default.

25

B 3 R 2R P
RERHEMEBWYRE (&)

EAHEREREZE 5 EEFER
ot - HEE T I TR
Rz BUEFEA-

Group

rEHE
2008 2007
—EENEF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET TET
Within 30 days 30BN 8,552 8,613
31-60 days 31-60H 1,066 50
61-90 days 61-90H 234 168
Over 90 days A0 H 1,169 962
11,021 9,793

At 31st December, 2008, there were no provisions for
impairment of trade receivables (2007: Nil).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the fair value of each class of receivables
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any
collateral as security.

The carrying amounts of the trade receivables were

RZZBEENEFE+_A=+—A0" I
EREFRERNFEELEE(ZZ

THFE)-

REFRERZRS
FH R YA Z

SE R A Lt
NAE NEH

I 48 55 A (TR R qn VR

B RWHIAZREEIVIATIE

denominated in the following currencies: oA
Group
KEE
2008 2007
—EEBNF —EELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FHET
United States dollar ETT 137,241 105,641
Hong Kong dollar BT 146 595
Renminbi AR 2,932 1,794
140,319 108,030
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26 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Derivative financial instruments comprise the followings:

6 FTEEmMTIA
TTESRMTABRETIIRE:

2008 2007
—EEN\E —EELF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FEx FAET
Leveraged foreign forward BERNERINESG L
exchange contracts (Note (a)) (Pt 5E(@)) 17,017 -
Market linked instrument with RIERBLTH TS
swap arrangement (Note (b)) BT A (D)) 4,751 1,092
Equity accumulators (Note (c)) EmRETA (MiEc)) - 11,625
21,768 12,617

The Group relies on valuations from the counterparty
financial institutions to determine the fair values of
the market linked instrument with swap arrangement,
which in turn are based on the pricing model using
the market closing prices of the underlying securities,
the volatilities, correlations, interest rate and foreign
exchange rates at the balance sheet date.

The fair values of the leveraged foreign forward
exchange contracts are calculated using discounted
cash flow analysis based on the applicable yield
curves of interest rates and foreign exchange rates as
determined by counterparty financial institutions.

Notes:
(a) Leveraged foreign forward exchange contracts

(i) Indonesia Rupiah and USD
As at 31st December, 2008, the Group has certain
outstanding Indonesia Rupiah (“IDR”) target redemption
forward contracts. Under these contracts, the Group will
receive IDR against delivery of USD at exchange rates of
USD: IDR pre-determined in the contracts.

Each time when the contracts are executed, if the spot
market exchange rate of USD: IDR is lower than the rate
pre-determined in the contracts, the Group will receive
IDR against delivery of USD at the pre-determined
exchange rate by paying the normal nominal USD
amount set in the contracts.
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26 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@) Leveraged foreign forward exchange contracts (Continued)

(0)

(i)

Indonesia Rupiah and USD (Continued)

Each time when the contracts are executed, if however,
the spot market exchange rate of USD: IDR is higher
than the rate pre-determined in the contracts, the Group
will receive IDR against delivery of USD at the pre-
determined exchange rate by paying a geared nominal
USD amount set in the contracts, which would be twice
of the normal nominal USD amount.

Under these contracts, the Group will receive Indonesia
Rupiah (“IDR”) against delivery of USD. The maximum
deliverable outstanding amount to the Group under these
contracts is IDR112,031 million (equivalent to Hong Kong
dollar of approximately HK$79 million using the exchange
rate as of 31st December, 2008) and a maximum amount
of USD11,850,000 to be delivered out by the Group. It is
deliverable in instalments up to September 2009.

Each of these contracts will be knocked out (i.e. the
obligation to deliver outstanding IDR installments to
the Group will automatically cease) when the stipulated
maximum profit is reached for that contract. However,
there is no similar knock-out feature for losses.

The Group recognised a fair value loss of HK$18,706,000
in relation to these contracts during the year ended 31st
December, 2008 (2007: Nil).

Hong Kong dollars and USD

As at 31st December, 2008, the Group also has certain
outstanding dual direction target redemption forward
contracts for HKD and USD. These contracts are settled
in either USD or HKD by reference to the gains or losses
against certain predetermined USD: HKD exchange rates
and are calculated by reference to a notional USD or
HKD amount per month.

Each time there is a delivery under the contracts, if the
spot market exchange rate of USD: HKD is higher than
a pre-determined rate in the contracts, the Group will
receive HKD against deliver of a notional amount of USD
at another pre-determined USD: HKD exchange rate as
set out in the contracts.

B R ERAR MR

26 T &I R (E)

P (48)

(@ ‘ERABRMIESH (F)

()

(i)

BEEERERLQA

HEERZET (#)

R BERTZEEOR M
ETAHEEZRETHERS
REZEANANTRLEE ZEX
REBBEBXNAHNRTAZE
gEmETeR (A-—KREEX
TEBIME)  IEAEET
ZIE R SR TR BRIA RN B 1
e

BEZEEH A5EKBBEA
R ETWEENERE (TEE
Bl - AEBEREZZEAHA
BERMEABZERNRZEEA
112,031,000,000E1 2 f& (A —
ZEENF+_A=+—B2ZE
RETE - FHE R #79,000,000/%8
o) A RBEAEERIIZFZ
&% %% 511,850,000 7T 5
HXNEE-_ZTZThENA-

MZEARHNEECEIMARE
Z&EME BREE K RIREUS
(AR AL ZENERE D H
NREEGBEBRL) R
SE BT S - B EECUEUS #
il -

HE-_ZZ)\F+=-_A=+—
BIEFERN AEERLEEESY
R A1 (EE1818,706,00078 7T
(ZZETLF )

BTRET

R-ZEENF+_A=+—8"
AEETFAETERBITRE
TLZ REIHER B R A R
B -BREANN2ERETHA
EERTHABTTERSE Z sk
BHEAXTRAETHEE W2E
XnFETEARHMSRETE -

NERIBIE A AT RURE -
ETABETZREmSERSRN
BHRRzE-TAEER AIARE
BRI AHNZ S —TAERXRT
RAETEXRFEZXTZNER
SRWEETT -
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26 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(@) Leveraged foreign forward exchange contracts (Continued)

(i)  Hong Kong dollars and USD (Continued)
The normal notional amount of USD the Group has to
deliver out is USD1,000,000 each time there is a delivery
under the contracts. At the rates pre-determined in the
contracts, the Group will receive the equivalent Hong
Kong dollar amount upon delivery of USD1,000,000.

Each time there is a delivery under the contracts, if
however, the spot market exchange rate of USD: HKD
is lower than a pre-determined rate in the contracts,
the Group will receive a geared notional amount of USD
dollar against deliver of HKD at another pre-determined
USD: HKD exchange rate as set out in the contracts.

The geared notional amount of USD the Group will
receive is either USD2,000,000 or USD3,000,000 each
time there is a delivery under the contracts. At the rates
pre-determined in the contracts or by referencing to the
spot market rate plus certain basis points, the Group will
deliver out the equivalent Hong Kong dollar amount upon
receipts of USD2,000,000 or USD3,000,000.

Settlement under these target redemption forward
contracts is usually on a net-settlement basis. These
contracts require monthly settlements to be made up to
April 2010.

The Group recognised a fair value loss of HK$568,000

in relation to these contracts during the year ended 31st
December, 2008.
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26 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Market linked instrument with swap arrangement

It involves an interest rate swap arrangement with a
nominal amount of HK$7,800,000. The contract has a two-
year contract period and will expire in October 2009. This
instrument is linked to the performance of a basket of three
securities listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

Under the contract, the Group agrees to pay a floating stream
of two months interest payments based on a two-month USD
LIBOR floating rate in return for 33.00% per annum guaranteed
interest for the first two months. Thereafter, such interest will
be accrued on each specific period if each of the securities in
the basket closes at or above the predetermined strike price
calculated on a trading daily basis.

Where one or more of the underlying listed securities are
traded below the predetermined knock in price, the Group
has to buy the worst performing security at the predetermined
strike price on the maturity date of the contract by paying the
nominal amount of HK$7,800,000 above. This instrument will
be terminated automatically if the closing price of each of the
underlying securities is at or above the autocall price on any
specified trading day.

The Group recognised a fair value loss of HK$3,659,000
in relation to this instrument during the year ended 31st
December, 2008 (2007: HK$1,092,000) (Note 6).

Equity accumulators

They were a series of forward contracts for the Group to
accumulate specific units of certain securities listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong according to the contracts at
predetermined prices on every trading day. These contracts
would be terminated automatically if the closing prices of the
underlying securities on any specified trading day during the
contract periods are at or above the predetermined knock-out
prices.

All these contracts were matured during the year ended 31st
December, 2008. The Group recognised a fair value loss of
HK$16,389,000 in relation to these equity accumulators during
the year ended 31st December, 2008 (2007: HK$11,525,000)
(Note 6).

B R ERAR MR

26 T &I R (E)

P (48)

(b)

(c)

BEEERERLQA

AEEHZE T EHATA

itk T A B E{E /7,800,000 7T 2 H
R IR - RANZ BN RME
WHR=—FTNE+ AEMH - It TAH
—ETRBEEMRXM LT Z =E&%
RIEHH -

BIBEEH NEERE X R ERE
BzEnTRERBEZHNRFEZM
8B #EF KA AEHREMREA
33.00% 2 RFEFEF K 2 F| 8 o H iz -
WEFRAZEEBLFRBMRERSS
RURTARSEEFEZBEETE
ZATEE  BZA BB IR S TR A
B

M—ERZERE LTMEHENIEL
BEZHITERE  ANEBBERAHE
HERELABTZ2IFEERERER
E2#FFH Y it Z HE{E7,800,000
BIT MR ERIEER 5 B SEHEE
HFWMEIENRSRR A EDE
BB TESBEHKRIL-

(K3E6) °

EZEBIA
AEBMBE-RINZBEBEHNMERE
B ZERANNBLEEEZEBKREZ
BETEMZETREBBRM LT
ZBE HRNA YR 2 AAEER S
AR EH 2 B E R k& R I8 5t
EEZBHEE AZEEHBEHK
ﬁ:o

FBESEHNHOREBE_ZSNF
+Z A=+ —BLFEINH - RE
E-ZFTNF+_A=+—HL
FE AEBORHEEZEET
B 16,389,000 T (Z 2 & +
F:11,525,0008 L) Z A A EE B
(MF7EB) °
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27 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

27 e RB&EERA

Group Company
rEE AT

2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF ZTTLHF ZTENF ZTTLR
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAET THET FAET
Cash at bank and in hand ~ R{T R FHEIE S 63,418 41,727 714 166
Short-term bank deposits %2 BASR 1T R 90 68,225 - -
63,508 109,952 714 166

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits
was 0.15% - 0.2% (2007: 3.5%) per annum where
these deposits have an average maturity of 5-7 days
(2007: 3 day).

The carrying amount of the cash and cash equivalents
were denominated in the following currencies:

RBRTERZERFF X E0.15
EZ02E (ZZEZ+HF:35F)
HYHREA AETR(ZE2EZE+

F:30) -

RehRESFEEB ZREETIA
THEEIHE

Group Company
rEE ¥ /N

2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE —ITTLF ZBENF —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THER TAT TAER FAT
Hong Kong dollar BT 4,192 18,197 714 166
United States dollar ETT 36,199 71,781 - -
Indonesian rupiah EEE 19,261 17,424 - -
Renminbi AR 2,979 2,235 - -
Others Hfh 877 315 - -
63,508 109,952 714 166
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28 BANK BORROWINGS MITER
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FET
Bank loans IRITER
— secured — B\ H - 9,688
— unsecured — A 49,722 37,179
49722 46867
Trust receipts loans SREMIBEE R
— secured — B\ H - 16,488
— unsecured — A 97,872 42,723
. 9rsr2 | 59211
Total borrowings mER 147,594 106,078
The Group'’s borrowings were repayable as follows: AREBZEZ VBN :
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FET
Within 1 year —F A 125,406 72,773
Between 1 and 2 years —EWFENRN 16,121 12,916
Between 2 and 5 years —ERFNA 6,067 20,389
147,594 106,078
Less: Amount due within 1 year B RN REAaEET
shown under current < —FREHERK
liabilities (125,406) (72,773)
Amount due after 1 year —F & B H R 22,188 33,305
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28 SBITER ()
SRITEZ Y REE A T 555

28 BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings were

denominated in the following currencies: B:
2008 2007
=t L U%: —2TLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THET
Hong Kong dollar BT 50,217 18,948
United States dollar X 97,377 87,130
147,594 106,078

RITERTE UETHEZER
REMENFILAEEI2IE(ZE
T+ F:3.3EE6.1F )8 UAB
Tt EZERAZRFEFENF15
BZE28E (ZEZ+F : T@EMA):

B o
oy

The bank loans bear interest rates ranging from 3.4% to
12.7% per annum for United States dollar denominated
loans (2007: 3.3% to 6.1% per annum) and 1.5% to
2.8% per annum for Hong Kong dollar denominated
loans (2007: N/A).

SHWEBEERTE AETEZ
ERREMENT20EE62E (=
TELF 20EE56E)TE
BT EZERUEFMENT2.4
EZ50B(ZEZ+F:5.08%
6.6F )5 B

The trust receipts loans bear interest rates ranging
from 2.9% to 6.2% per annum for United States dollar
denominated loans (2007: 2.9% to 5.6% per annum)
and 2.4% to 5.0% per annum for Hong Kong dollar
denominated loans (2007: 5.0% to 6.6% per annum).

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings approximate RITERZERMESRE R R EME

their fair values. e
29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 29 SBIEFRSR

ERAEANNTRAGRENASE
ERRERBERERE BELEMR
SRR M A — B B R AT
EESHEBEEERBEIEE A

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal

authority. The offset amounts are as follows: Kz WO :
2008 2007
—EENF —ZTTELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FH&ET
Deferred income tax assets BIEFTB R EE 2,679 2,868
Deferred income tax liabilities BEEMGEH AR (5,194) (7,384)
(2,515) (4,516)
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29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 29 REEFRFI (#8)
The movements on the deferred income tax account EBEEMESHREEREE ZEH 0T

are as follows:

2008 2007
—EENF —EETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FAET
Beginning of the year F4) (4,516) (492)
Deferred income tax credited/ RBAFREKET A
(charged) to income statement ($BR) 2 EIEFT1S R
(Note 10) (Mf5E10) 2,595 (3,817)
Deferred income tax charged to RiEmP R 2
equity EIEFTIS L (346) (146)
Exchange differences MEH =5 (248) (61)
End of the year FIR (2,515) (4,516)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax BEMGHEEESEREB W
loss carry forwards to the extent that realisation of the B ZEAEREBRKER R
related tax benefit through the future taxable profits is FER My AESHIESEEER
probable. As at 31st December, 2008, the Group has RZZEENF+_A=+—H"7
unrecognised cumulative tax losses of approximately HAREFESERIAKEBEZESR
HK$104,172,000 (2007: HK$20,359,000) to carry WAZAERRFAREEBEROR
forward against future taxable income. Cumulative 104,172,000 T (Z T T L F:
tax losses of approximately HK$50,448,000 (2007: 20,359,000/ 7t ) - 5t H 1B & 18
HK$4,915,000) can be carried forward indefinitely while #4950,448,0008 L (Z T T+ F:
tax losses of approximately HK$53,724,000 (2007: 4,915,000/ 7T ) AT HE (R HR 45 88 -
HK$15,444,000) will expire in five years. i T8 5 18 4953,724,0008 L (=&
T+ 15,444,000 7T ) SR A F

MR-
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29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movements in deferred income tax assets and
liabilities (prior to offsetting of balances within the same

29 EEFRSIR (&)

FRAZELEREHEENBEEH
(RIEIHFE —HIAE ER 2 EeRAT)

taxation jurisdiction) during the year are as follows: mr
Deferred income tax assets RIEFRSNEE
Provision
for post-
employment
benefits Others Total
==
HERREZE
ZEANERE Hith Mot
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FH&TT FETT FETT
At 1st January, 2007 R-ZZFZELF
—H—H 3,050 1,229 4,279
Charged to income statement PN A R XK 5 (452) (833) (1,285)
Exchange differences fE =R (115) (11) (126)
At 31st December, 2007 RZEETLF
+—-A=+—8H 2,483 385 2,868
At 1st January, 2008 RZETNEF
—H—H 2,483 385 2,868
Credited/(charged) to income R A IR ZEK
statement A (0K 618 (385) 233
Exchange differences bE H =58 (422) - (422)
At 31st December, 2008 R-ZEZENEFE
+=-—RA=+—H 2,679 - 2,679
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29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

29 SRIEFTISI (#8)

B HE R B AE

Deferred income tax liabilities BREFRBRAR
Fair value Withholding
gains of tax for
buildings and Accelerated undistributed
investment tax retained
properties depreciation earnings Total
BFR DK
REMEZ BEBIE REER
ARERE wE ZENHE #ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FiET FTET TET
At 1st January, 2007 RZETLF—H—H 2,671 2,100 - 4,771
Charged/(credited) to income AU ARKF K,/
statement (5t A) 1,094 (289) 1,727 2,532
Charged to equity N il 146 - - 146
Exchange differences BN EE - (65) - (65)
At 31st December, 2007 RZZEZT+F
+=-A=+-8 3,911 1,746 1,727 7,384
At 1st January, 2008 RZZEENF—H—H 3,911 1,746 1,727 7,384
Credited to income RIARERH A
statement (2,207) (155) - (2,362)
Charged to equity Rz kR 346 - - 346
Exchange differences EHER - (174) - (174)
At 31st December, 2008 RZZETNEF
+=-A=+—H 2,050 1,417 1,727 5,194
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30 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 30 B REMBEFMNFRIEA
Group Company
AEE AAT
2008 2007 2008 2007

—2RN\F —TTEF ZEENF —TTLH
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAT TER TAET

Trade payables 2 5 308 74,469 74,078 - -
Other payables and H b JE < 5B K
accruals EiTEA 52,367 54,255 1,117 4,466
126,836 128,333 1,117 4,466
The ageing analysis of the trade payables is as follows: BN FIBZERROTAT
Group
rEH
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Within 30 days 30H A 46,890 56,783
31-60 days 31-60H 15,238 5,855
61-90 days 61-90H 6,636 5,647
Over 90 days B E90H 5,705 5,793
74,469 74,078
Trade and other payables approximate their fair values. g5 hEAMENFKIBEEE QR EME
% o
Trade payables were denominated in the following B ZRNKBTATHEESE :
currencies:
2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FEx FET
Hong Kong dollar BT 32,743 50,007
United States dollar ETT 20,642 18,923
Indonesia Rupiah & 3,743 2,840
Renminbi AR 17,341 2,308
74,469 74,078
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31 SHARE CAPITAL 31 BB®&
2008 2008 2007 2007
—BEN\E ZBENE C—ITTLF CZITITLHF
Number of Ordinary Number of Ordinary
Shares shares Shares shares
R#HEE ERR EEauE=g= T
(thousands) HK$’000 (thousands) HK$’ 000
(F®&) THET (Fh) FAT
At 1st January n—HA- 367,774 36,777 361,054 36,105
Employee share option EEER ﬁf ARl
scheme
— new shares issued —BITHR G 4,100 410 6,720 672
At 31st December R+ZA=+—H 371,874 37,187 367,774 36,777

The total authorised number of ordinary shares is
2,000,000,000 (2007: 2,000,000,000) shares with a par
value of HK$0.10 per share (2007: HK$0.10 per share).

Share option scheme adopted on 8th May, 2002
(the “Scheme”)

At the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 8th May, 2002, the Scheme was approved and
adopted.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company are
authorised to grant options to qualifying participants of
the Company or its subsidiaries to subscribe for shares
in the Company at prices in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme.

Under the terms of the Scheme, the directors of
the Company granted options to certain qualifying
participants on 25th October, 2005 to subscribe for a
total of 17,160,000 shares in the Company at a price
of HK$0.536 per share. During the year, 4,800,000
outstanding share options which were exercisable
from 1st November, 2005 to 31st October, 2008 were
lapsed on 1st November, 2008.

A TE I A2 80 A2,000,000,000%
(ZZEZ+4:2,000,000,0000% )
FREECI0EL (—EF 4
AXE{EO0. 1078 7T ) °

R-BE_FAANBRMBZME
fEatE ([Zat®])

ZETEER —_EZT_FAANBE
TZARBIBRRBERE EHER

BIEZAE NRAREFERER]
BYARASEMBRAR G EE
2 E B - AR R Z A 8RR
%E;EZ{ETDHLE%ZK jZHXfﬁ"

R_EBEERF+A-_+HB AR
RIZEERBZATE KRB TET
ABER2HEEAZFR0.5368 T2
BIR A A 17,160,000/ i% 17 2
BB AE - N F A - 4,800,000 A] 1A
—EERF+—A—BEZ_ZZEN
F+A=+—BITEZHRITHEE

REER-TEN\E+—A—B%
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31 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 31 & (#8)
Share option scheme adopted on 8th May, 2002 R-EE_FHANBGRZHEE
(the “Scheme”) (Continued) Het® ([Zet®]) (8)
Movements in the number of options outstanding under EZAE THRITE 2 BRESE
the Scheme during the year and their related weighted RERNZES) RS2 BEINE
average exercise prices are as follows: FEITEENT
2008 2007
—EENF “TTLF
Average Average
exercise exercise
price price
FYTREE FHITRE
HK$ per  Number of HKS per Number of
share options share options
BRET BREZE FRET BREHE
At 1st January »n—H—H 0.536 8,900,000 0.5836 15,620,000
Exercised B171E 0.536  (4,100,000) 0.536 (6,720,000)
Lapsed B R 0.536  (4,800,000) - -
At 31st December R+=—A=+—H - 8,900,000
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32 OTHER RESERVES 32 HftuEim
Group
k¥ -3
Available-
Exchange Fixed assets Merger  Share-based for-sale
Share  translation  revaluation Reserve compensation  investments
premium reserve reserve (Note (i)) reserve reserve Total
MR 43
EEEE A %fHEE THEE
RiEE ERfRE BfhRE (W) We e RERR a3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL THEL THEL FHL FEL FEL FAL
At 1st January, 2007 R-E2+5-A-H 37,440 (9,627) 3,637 (200) 2,040 370 33,660
Exchange differences arising on A Z I BAE R
the translation of the financial B4 A AIB B K
statements of overseas EECERES
subsidiaries and associates - 1,247 - - - - 1,247
Fair value changes, net of RAEED Mk
deferred tax ERRE - - 340 - - - 340
Employee share options EERRESE:
scheme:
- exercise of share options e 3714 - - - (785) - 2,929
Surplus on revaluation of EffAREEL
available-for-sale financial CRHEERR
assets - - - - - 22 22
Disposal of available-for-sale HETREE SREE
financial assets - - - - - (392 (392
At 31st December, 2007 RZTTLE
+-A=+-8 41,154 (8,380) 3977 (200) 1255 - 37,806
At Tst January, 2008 W-TEN\F-A-B 4,154 (8,380) 3977 (200) 1,255 - 37,806
Exchange differences arising on ~ AE SN B AR L
the translation of the financial B & A Al B K
statements of overseas EEZERZS
subsidiaries and associates - (8,897) - - - - (8,897)
Fair value changes, net of AnEZE Nk
deferred tax BERE - - 807 - - - 807
Employee share options ESERES:
scheme:
— exercise of share options —{TERE 2,368 - - - (580) - 1,788
- lapse of share options ~BREXX - - - - (675) - (675)
At 31st December, 2008 RZZEN\F
+-B=+-R 43,522 (17,277) 4,784 (200) - - 30,829
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32 OTHER RESERVES (Continued)

B ISR R M RE

32 HthEfE (#)

Company
VN
Contributed Share-based
Share Surplus compensation
premium (Note (ii)) reserve Total
BURR 42
BABRH X EE
B 12 )% & (£ (i) ) A1 ] @zt
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FHET FET
At 1st January, 2007 RZZTZTLF
—H—H 37,440 147,694 2,040 187,174
Employee share option EEEREE:
scheme:
- exercised of share — TR
options 3,714 - (785) 2,929
At 31st December, 2007 R_TELF
+-R=+—H 41,154 147,694 1,255 190,103
At 1st January, 2008 RZZENF
—HA—H 41,154 147,694 1,255 190,103
Employee share option EEBERELTE
scheme:
- exercise of share options ~ —{T1F 85 i 1% 2,368 - (580) 1,788
- lapse of share options —BERBELH - - (675) (675)
At 31st December, 2008 RZZBZNF
+-A=+—8H 43,522 147,694 - 191,216
Notes: B 5 -
() The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference (i) AEBZzAHREHEEEBEAZ —HK

between the nominal value of the shares of a subsidiary
acquired and the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange thereof.

(if) The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the consolidated shareholders’ funds of the
subsidiary acquired and the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange thereof.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

33 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH
FLOW STATEMENT

33 FEHRERERME

Reconciliation of (loss)/profit before income
tax to net cash (outflow)/inflow from

operations is as follows:

BREFGIRAT (B518) @ FIR4E
giiiniﬂﬁ (Illhm)/lllllﬁg
ZHIEMT :

2008 2007
—BENE - TTE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
(Loss)/profit before income tax  BRFT S FL AT (E518)
il (37,501) 81,308
Depreciation of properties, plant %% B E M XEITE
and equipment 20,501 17,414
Gain on disposal of properties, HEWE HE K &RE
plant and equipment ZWEs (24) (1,576)
Impairment of properties, plant 1% - B = N &R & B E
and equipment 2,220 8,261
Impairment of goodwill HERE 1,100 -~
Amortisation of leasehold land ~ F8& £ b [ 1 (& FA #E
and land use rights 2 B 286 766
Share of loss/(profit) of DR E N EEE
associates (s A1) 1,402 (1,738)
Gain on disposal of HE—MBE AT 2
an associate W & - (72)
Fair value gains on investment & WE QAR E 2 W
properties - (6,000)
Gain on disposal of investment  HEREWE 7 WiE
properties (7,300) -
Dividend income on listed EFRABSHZ
equity securities f& B A (1,720) -
Finance income B E WA (2,356) (6,730)
Finance costs B & R A 5,566 6,637
(17,826) 98,270
Changes in working capital: HEEREH:
Inventories FE (32,693) 70,158
Trade and other receivables H 5 K& H b fE W R IE (20,584) (519)
Financial assets at fair value BAREFABREZ
through profit or loss TREE (16,190) (13,634)
Available for sale financial AftHECERMEE
assets - 364
Trade and other payables g5 & H M E R RIE 1,040 (46,883)
Derivative financial instruments 74 < T A 11,408 12,487
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from g ESHRe OfRd)
operations /um)\/?%ﬁ (74,845) 120,243
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33 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH
FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)

(b) Analysis of changes in financing during the

year

Share capital and
share premium

33 mEHKNERMEE (])

(b) FARMEEB SN

Bank borrowings

Minority interests

RARKRAEE RITER SERRER
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
“EENE —TTHHF ZBENFE C—TTLH ZBENE C"TTtF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TET TR TET TR
At 1st January BR—A—H 77,931 73,545 106,078 93,655 8,247 2,594
Issuance of shares upon RITEE 1R B B R AER
exercise of employee IR
share OptiOnS 2,198 3,601 _ _ _ _
Transfer from share based RITERERER 51
compensation reserve upon XY (T EEEM S
exercise of options R 580 785 - - - -
Bank borrowings raised HEBITER - - 613,492 413,195 - -
Bank borrowings repaid BERITER - - (571,976) (400,772) - -
Minority interests’ in share of D &R R E(S (BE)
(losses)/profits and reserves /| L& - - - - (1,293) 5,155
Dividend paid to a minority EA B AR
shareholder of a subsidiary PEBREZRE - - - - (628) (581)
Exchange differences ERESE - - - - 1,467 1,079
At 31st December R+=ZRA=+—H 80,709 77,931 147,594 106,078 7,793 8,247
34 COMMITMENTS 34 Kik
Capital commitments BExRE

Capital expenditure at the balance sheet date but not

REERBIDREE ZERF W

yet incurred is as follows: N
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Leasehold land and land use right, 8 & + b J% £ 3 {5 F 4%
properties, plant and equipment ER Y L
Contracted but not provided for EENEREE - 2,880
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34 XKIiE(48)
BEHERE

AEERENAMELLHEME
RARER L MBF N2 &KEHE

34 COMMITMENTS (Continued)
Commitments under operating leases

The Group had future aggregate minimum lease
payments for land and buildings under non-cancellable

operating leases as follows: THERBEAT
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Not later than one year —F RN 5,615 5,302

Later than one year and not later ~ — %1%

than five years BRERATE 8,089 11,226
Later than five years T F1& 3,340 6,091
17,044 22,619

35 BHBLE

ARRAR-FENF+=A=+—
A2 EEMBAARIMT

35 SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at
31st December, 2008:

Place of
incorporation/ Particulars Percentage
Place of Principal of issued of interest
Company name operation activities share capital held
FMmEL FrisrEs
DNEEH REWE TEEK ERTRAER Bt
Shares held directly:
EERFER®D:
Topwell Group British Virgin Investment holding 1,000 ordinary 100
Development Ltd. Islands shares of
US$1 each
KBRUES REZER 1,0008% & X
HEIETZ
Emik
Shares held indirectly:
MEFER®D:
Best Sphere Group British Virgin Investment holding 1 ordinary share 100
Limited Islands of US$1
RERUHS REER 1REEIETZ
ERELN
EEEZERERDT 2008 FEHE 157



Notes to the Financial Statements

35 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

B ISR R M RE

35 MEBAT ()

Place of
incorporation/ Particulars Percentage
Place of Principal of issued of interest
Company name operation activities share capital held
B Ptz
NEEH R B TEXER ERTREEHR BO
Bright Horizons British Virgin Investment holding 1 ordinary share 100
Investments Limited Islands of US$1
HERERES RERR 1REEIETZ
Tk
Carry Wealth Limited Hong Kong Garment trading, 4,000,000 100
marketing and ordinary shares
provision of of HK$1 each
management
services
A AR LA BB KKES THHERE 4,000,000 &k
KR E R R EEVETZ
gl
Carry Wealth (South Africa) British Virgin Investment holding 1 ordinary share 100
Investment Limited Islands of US$1
RBRZES RERR 1REEIETZ
EgEl
Easy Victory Investments British Virgin Investment holding 1 ordinary share 100
Limited Islands of US$1
RBRZES RERR 1REEIETZ
EgEll
Gold Clipper Trading British Virgin Investment holding 1 ordinary share 100
Limited Islands of US$1
HERERES RERER 1REEIETZ
Tk
Hillwealth International Hong Kong Garment trading and 1 ordinary share 100
Limited marketing of HK$1
BRBERARAQA BB RKESRTSHEE 1REEBEIETZ
Emik
Mass Wealth Investments Hong Kong Investment holding 1 ordinary share 100
Limited of HK$1
RMEREBRAR BB REER 1REBEIBTZ
gl
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35 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

35 MEBAT ()

B R ERAR MR

Place of
incorporation/ Particulars Percentage
Place of Principal of issued of interest
Company name operation activities share capital held
FMmEL Ptz
NEEH R TEXER ERTREEHR BO
Mutual Grace Investments Hong Kong Investment holding 1 ordinary share 100
Limited of HK$1
BERERRRQA BB RERER IREEBEIETZ
T Ak
PT Caterindo Garment Indonesia Manufacture of knit 15,000 ordinary 95
Industri tops shares of Rp1
million each
gfe HESE IR 15,000/% & BX E &
—AgHREZ
ERELN
Shinning Century Limited Hong Kong/ Manufacture of knit 1,000,000 70
Lesotho tops ordinary shares
of HK$1 each
BEARAR BB/ RER FEHE K 1,000,0008% & f%
EEETLZ
ERELN
Sino Precision Limited British Virgin Investment holding 1,000 ordinary 66.7
Islands shares of
US$1 each
HERRES RERER 1,000/% & i &
11X EBR
Supreme Bright Group Hong Kong Provision of garment 2 ordinary shares 100
Limited agency services of HK$1 each
BREEARRAA BB REARKRARIE R 2l EREE
BT EBR
BLEERHXERAA PRC wholly Manufacture and sale  US$10,500,000 100
(Heshan Carry Wealth foreign owned of knit products
Garment Limited) enterprise
PEBELERR HAEMBEEHBRE  10,500,000% T
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36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(c)

As at 31st December, 2008, 169,062,000 shares
(45.46%) of the Company were held by Respected
International Limited, which was ultimately owned
as to 46.03% and 46.03% by Mr Rusli Hendrawan
and Mr Lee Sheng Kuang, James, directors of the

36 RBAE

(a)

kL)

R_ZEEZNF+_A=+—
H:>Z&/2A7169,062,0000%
f% 17 (45.46%)H Respected

International Limited# 4 -
Rusli Hendrawan4t 4 B2 2= g

Certain prior year comparative figures have been
reclassified to conform to the current year’s
presentation.
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Company, respectively through their respective HEEDHEBEETBEZE
wholly-owned companies. BB RRIGRBRERZLARZ
46.08% }.46.03% 1 % °
During the year, the Group has the following (b) REA: K’Eliﬁiﬁi\ﬂﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁ
transaction with its associate, ShanDong WeiQiao IWERRBESEHENEERA
HengFu Textile Limited: AIBNA TR S
2008 2007
—EEBNF —EELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FET
Purchases of raw materials BERE 4,592 4,568
Payables to the associate JE T Bt & R R SRR 246 -
Key management compensation (c) EEBEBAAMS
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAET
Salaries and other short-term B 2 L th 52 B
employee benefits EERF 10,018 13,646
Contributions to the BIBESETEIMHR
MPF Scheme 317 317
10,335 13,963
At 31st December, 2008, the Company had d RZZEENF+ZH=1+—
provided guarantees in respect of banking facilities H AR a 25 EKB
of its subsidiaries amounting to approximately RAZCEITEEARHEY
HK$459,120,000 (2007: HK$511,050,000). 459,120,000 T (ZEZE £
The facilities utilised by the subsidiaries at 31st % :511,050,0007%8 7T ) 2
December, 2008 amounted to HK$147,594,000 iR o B 2 RAIR =TT )\F
(2007: HK$106,078,000). +ZRA=+—HE®HAZEE
¥ /R147,594,000%8 7T (—ZFF
+ 4 106,078,000 7T ) °
37 COMPARATIVES 37 LERBF

ETBEFEZLBRBFCEHND
BUNAEAFEZZSTTA -
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